FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA NO. 2018-06

REGULAR MEETING MARCH 19, 2018
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA

WORK SESSION

5:00 p.m. — City Marijuana Regulations

It is the mission of the City of Fairbanks to provide essential services to the residents of the City that
increase the desirability of the City as a place to live, work, and visit. Essential services include not just
the visible activities of police, fire, and public works employees, but also the creation and maintenance of
community infrastructure, promotion of safe housing and construction standards, and the sound
management of community assets.

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 p.m.

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION

3. FLAG SALUTATION

4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards)

5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS on consent agenda items indicated by an asterisk (*).
Testimony is limited to five minutes. Any person wishing to speak needs to
complete the register located in the hallway. Normal standards of decorum and
courtesy should be observed by all speakers. Remarks should be directed to the
City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member
of the staff. In consideration of others, please silence all cell phones and
electronic devices.

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member
so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General
Agenda.

\Agenda No. 2018-06 March 19, 2018 Page 1 of 3

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 1 of 71



7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

*a)  Regular Meeting Minutes of January 29, 2018

8. SPECIAL ORDERS

a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the
following Liquor License Applications for Renewal. Public Testimony will
be taken and limited to five minutes.

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address

5436 Hoarfrost Distilling Distillery Hoarfrost Distilling, LLC 3501 L"ﬁ:gtog Street,

5500 K & L Distributors Alaska Wholesale — Malt White Mountain 945 Elizabeth Street

Beverage & Wine Beverage, LLC

252 Club Alaskan Beverage Jerwater, Inc. 901 Qld Steese
Dispensary Highway

1059 Raven Landing Center Beverage Retirement Community 1222 Cowles Street
Dispensary of Fairbanks

995 Oaken Keg #2754 Package Store Safeway, Inc. 3627 Airport Way

999 Oaken Keg #3410 Package Store Safeway, Inc. 30 College Road

4941 Seoul Gate Restaurant ReStalgg r;téEatmg Seoul Gate, Inc. 958 Cowles Street

3170 The Odom Corporation Wholesale — General | The Odom Corporation 3101 Zegyei Road,

9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT

a) Special Reports

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS

*a) Resolution No. 4829 — A Resolution in Support of Senate Bill 215, An Act
Relating to Multi-Line Telephone Systems. Introduced by Mayor Matherly.
*p)  Resolution No. 4830 — A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to

Apply for Funds from the United States Department of Homeland Security
for the FY2017 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response
Grant Program. Introduced by Mayor Matherly.

Agenda No. 2018-06 March 19, 2018 Page 2 of 3

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 2 of 71



*C) Resolution No. 4831 — A Resolution Approving the Purchase of Certain
Lots in Block 6, Bjerremark Homestead Subdivision. Introduced by Mayor
Matherly.

*d)  Ordinance No. 6073 — An Ordinance Authorizing the Lease of Golden
Heart Plaza to Festival Fairbanks. Introduced by Mayor Matherly.

12. DISCUSSION ITEMS (Information and Reports)
a) Committee Reports
13.  WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL
*a)  Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2017
*p)  Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018
14. CITIZENS' COMMENTS, oral communications to the City Council on any item
not up for public hearing. Testimony is limited to five minutes.
15. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS
16. CITY CLERK’'S REPORT
17. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT
18. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a) FFU Labor Negotiations
b) IBEW Labor Negotiations
19. ADJOURNMENT
Agenda No. 2018-06 March 19, 2018 Page 3 of 3

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 3of 71



FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JANUARY 29, 2018
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA

The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, following a 6:00 p.m. Work Session
for the Permanent Fund Annual Report, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks City
Council at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Mayor Jim
Matherly presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance:

Council Members Present: Joy Huntington, Seat A
June Rogers, Seat B
Valerie Therrien, Seat C
Jonathan Bagwill, Seat D
Jerry Cleworth, Seat E
David Pruhs, Seat F

Absent: None

Also Present: Paul Ewers, City Attorney
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff
Carmen Randle, Chief Financial Officer
Christina Rowlett, HR Admin
Ron Templeton, Assistant Fire Chief
Keith Berrien, Firefighter

City Clerk Danyielle Snider read aloud the Mission Statement of the City of Fairbanks.

INVOCATION

The Invocation was given by City Clerk Danyielle Snider.

FLAG SALUTATION

Mayor Matherly asked Ms. Huntington to lead the Flag Salutation.

CEREMONIAL MATTERS

Mayor Matherly called firefighter Keith Berrien forward and presented him with a gold pan; he
thanked him for his 27 years of service to the City of Fairbanks. Mayor Matherly spoke to Mr.
Berrien’s contributions to the Fairbanks Fire Department (FFD) and to the City of Fairbanks. He
asked everyone to give Mr. Berrien a round of applause in appreciation of his dedicated service.

CITIZENS' COMMENTS ON CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Mayor Matherly called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony
closed.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 4 of 71



APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA

Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent
Agenda.

Mr. Cleworth pulled Resolution No. 4820 and the Memo Regarding City Fire Department
Manning and Mutual Aid from the Consent Agenda.

Mr. Pruhs pulled Resolution No. 4822 from the Consent Agenda.
Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED.
City Clerk Snider read the Consent Agenda, as Amended, into the record.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of October 23, 2017
APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.
b) Regular Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2017
APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.
C) Regular Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2017
APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.
d) Regular Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2017
APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

SPECIAL ORDERS

a) The Fairbanks City Council heard interested citizens concerned with the following
Liquor License Applications for Renewal:

L;f' DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address

727 Lavelle’s Bistro Beverage Dispensary | Café de Paris Catering Co. 575 1st Avenue

4170 Lavelle’s Bistro Beverage Dispensary | Café de Paris Catering Co. 575 1st Avenue

3969 | BoomTown Grill & Bar | Beverage Dispensary JSR, Inc. 537 Gaffney Rd, Ste. 1

4232 Kodiak Jack’s Beverage Dispensary JSR, Inc. 537 Gaffney Road

1639 Alaska Salmon Bake Restaurant/Eating Malemute, Inc. 2300 Airport Way
Place — Seasonal

City of Fairbanks

Regular Meeting Minutes

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT

January 29, 2018
Page 2 of 11

50f 71




Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Liquor License
Applications for Renewal.

Jessica Lissow, 2703 Chief Alexander Drive, Fairbanks — Ms. Lissow thanked the Council for
their service to the community and stated that her father, Mr. Mensik, is a dedicated member of
the community. She stated her father is a great parent and grandparent, and the recent negative
attention surrounding him is not warranted. She reported Mr. Mensik employs 150 local
residents, and he cares about each one. She stated Mr. Mensik is a hands-on business operator,
and he stops by each of his businesses daily. Ms. Lissow stated Mr. Mensik is a busy man, but
he always makes time for his family. She stated she has read negative and untrue things about
her father recently; she stated that he is a quality man and business man. She stated her father
has given a lot to the community, and she provided some examples.

Ms. Rogers asked Ms. Lissow where she had read negative things about her father; Ms. Lissow
stated she read news articles and social media posts. Ms. Lissow stated she grew up in Fairbanks
and that she has heard negative comments about bar owners her whole life.

Rick Mensik, 115 Chief Evan Drive, Fairbanks — Mr. Mensik asked the Council to give
consideration to all of the circumstances surrounding Kodiak Jack’s. He stated he contributes to
the community not just by employing people but also in paying his sales tax; he added that he
donates to many local organizations. He spoke to the police callout report and stated that many
of the calls took place while his establishment was closed. Mr. Mensik compared other liquor
establishments to Kodiak Jack’s, specifically Fred Meyer and Safeway. He stated he places a lot
of emphasis on his security team and spends a great deal of money on payroll to keep them well-
staffed and educated. He stated the safety of his patrons is very important to him, and he asked
the Council to consider all factors when deciding whether to protest his license.

Ms. Rogers asked Mr. Mensik if he was still working with Police Chief Eric Jewkes to increase
security at Kodiak Jack’s. Mr. Mensik stated he has had several meetings with Chief Jewkes and
has relayed the information to his security staff.

Ms. Therrien asked Mr. Mensik if he has implemented any new procedures since working with
Chief Jewkes and, if so, whether there has subsequently been less police activity. Mr. Mensik
reported his head of security now wears a body camera just like the type police officers wear.
He stated he has been working with the military base to help reduce the number of incidents that
occur at his business.

Mr. Cleworth asked about the hours of operation for Kodiak Jack’s; Mr. Mensik stated the
hours of operation are Thursday from 8 a.m. till 2 a.m. and Friday and Saturday from 8 p.m. to
3:30 a.m. Mr. Cleworth asked whether the BoomTown liquor license is adjacent to Kodiak
Jack’s; Mr. Mensik replied affirmatively and stated that it is owned by the same owners who
own the Lemongrass Restaurant. Mr. Mensik stated that BoomTown Grill & Bar has different
operating hours, but they open the space in the evenings when Kodiak Jack’s is open because it
is also the pull tab parlor.

Ms. Huntington asked how many people are on the security staff and how many security staff
work on shift at the same time. Mr. Mensik stated he has 13 total security staff working Friday

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 6 of 71



nights, and he employs a total of 20 security staff. Ms. Huntington asked Mr. Mensik if he has
metal detectors; Mr. Mensik stated they have metal detectors, and they pat each person down
upon entry or reentry to Kodiak Jack’s. He stated that females pat down the female customers,
and males pat down the male customers. Ms. Huntington asked if lighting in the parking lot has
improved; Mr. Mensik stated he has the letter that former Police Chief Randall Aragon signed
after he made the requested lighting changes to the property.

Mr. Pruhs asked Mr. Mensik if he resides in City limits; Mr. Mensik replied affirmatively. He
stated he moved to Fairbanks in 1983 and that he has been operating various businesses in
Fairbanks since 1992. He reported he has complied with the requests of several different police
chiefs over the years in order to increase the safety of patrons. Mr. Pruhs asked Mr. Mensik if
he has ever been denied a liquor license; Mr. Mensik reported that he has not.

Nicholas Nyquist, 558 Gaffney Road, Fairbanks — Mr. Nyquist stated he is the landlord at 537
Gaffney Road, the location of Kodiak Jack’s. He stated that, as the property owner, losing Mr.
Mensik as a tenant would create a hardship. He stated Mr. Mensik has a great deal of knowledge
of the building because he has occupied the space for so long. He stated there are other tenants
in the building that would be affected if Kodiak Jack’s was to lose its liquor license.

Mr. Pruhs asked Mr. Nyquist what he would do with the building if he lost Mr. Mensik as a
tenant. Mr. Nyquist stated he did not know what he would do with the facility because it would
need a significant amount of remodeling, and it would not be feasible. Mr. Pruhs spoke to the
vacant businesses and buildings on Cushman Street; Mr. Nyquist spoke to the hazard of Kodiak
Jack’s being vacant and the amount of taxes that the bar generates for the City of Fairbanks.

Sean White, 899 Senate Drive, Fairbanks — Mr. White stated anytime a large number of people
get together and consume alcohol someone is going to do something stupid. He stated if Kodiak
Jack’s closes, the crowd will simply migrate to another bar and cause the same kind of problems.
He reported that Mr. Mensik has been responsive to all requests from safety officials and that
shutting his business down would be curtailing commerce. Mr. White stated he works for the
FFD, and he has only been called for incidents in the parking lot of the establishment, never
inside of the bar. He stated the Council should work on the bigger issue with alcohol; he
suggested that there be a requirement for a non-alcohol designation to appear on an individual’s
State identification card to prevent the purchase of alcohol by someone who is not allowed to do
so. He further stated that the Council should enact an ordinance requiring that all alcohol
purchases, no matter the age of the purchaser, be subject to an identification check to verify
whether the individual has any alcohol-related convictions.

Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks — Mr. Turney stated he is against putting alcohol into
his body but that the government should not be regulating what he puts into his body. He stated
he appreciated hearing Mr. Mensik’s daughter report on the good things he has done for the
community. He stated that when he was younger he used to enjoy going out and having fun and
that if the Council shuts down entertainment venues, the City will “go to hell in a handbasket.”
He echoed Mr. White’s idea about an identification check for all alcohol purchases.

Victor Buberge, P.O. Box 58192, Fairbanks — Mr. Buberge spoke in support of an ordinance
regarding an identification check but stated that it will not stop someone from having a friend

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 7 of 71



purchase alcohol for them. He stated he has been to Kodiak Jack’s a few times and that Mr.
Mensik seems to be doing the best he can with his security team. He stated it is a well-run
business and that nothing is going to prevent people from acting like humans.

Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony
closed.

Mr. Bagwill stated he is impressed with the amount of homework Mr. Mensik did prior to the
Council meeting.

Mayor Matherly stated it is hard to compare Fred Meyer and Kodiak Jack’s because of the tens
of thousands of people who shop there each week compared to the limited hours of operation of
the bar. He stated that he and the Council are concerned about public safety. He stated he works
closely with Chief Jewkes to address public safety concerns and that there is nothing personal
behind the questions being asked about Kodiak Jack’s.

Mr. Pruhs thanked Mr. Mensik for coming to the Council meeting to testify both personally and
professionally about his business.

Ms. Huntington thanked Mr. Mensik for attending and for giving an overview of the safety
precautions that are already in place. She stated that when the Council receives the callout
information, it is hard to determine what happened at a property. She stated businesses need to
be held accountable, and she is happy to see that Mr. Mensik has addressed all safety concerns.

Ms. Rogers thanked Mr. Mensik for attending and for speaking about his liquor license renewal.
She shared concern that other liquor license owners were not present to speak on behalf of their
respective liquor license renewals.

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATIONS FOR RENEWAL AS FOLLOWS:

YEAS: Therrien, Rogers, Pruhs, Bagwill, Huntington, Cleworth
NAYS: None
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT

a) Special Reports

Amy Geiger, 101 Dunkel Street, Fairbanks — Ms. Geiger spoke to the 2018 Visitor’s Guide and
stated that it is the main marketing tool for Explore Fairbanks. She stated Explore Fairbanks
used a picture of the aurora borealis on the cover of the guide because it has been such a popular
destination marketing tool. She stated Explore Fairbanks’ website now has a midnight sun
tracker that allows visitors to see how many daylight and twilight hours there are during the year.

Brittany Smart, 907 Terminal Street, Fairbanks — Ms. Smart reported on community meetings
focused on air quality and on the Sandbox 2.0 meeting that will be a continuing discussion about

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 8 of 71



the Fairbanks North Star Borough Budget (FNSB) the budget. She stated the Borough needs to
make budget cuts, and they want to gather community perspective.

Mayor Matherly shared the importance of attending and being involved in community
decisions. Ms. Smart stated that Mayor Karl Kassel would like as much community involvement
as possible because they are trying to determine which facilities to keep in operation.

Public Works Director Jeff Jacobson reported on a pipe leak that occurred in the basement of
City Hall and spoke to the need to consider steam pipe replacement. He provided a picture of the
rotten pipe and explained that it will not be able to be patched. He stated he is working with
Development Manager Patrick Smith to obtain drawings of the existing heating system for future
use. Mr. Jacobson stated two heat pumps failed at the parking garage over the weekend and staff
had to be sent home due to the cold temperature in the building. He stated the cold weather has
been taking a toll on the garbage packer trucks and other equipment at Public Works. He
reported that his department is working on snow removal, and it is a long process because of the
amount of snow that has fallen and because of the rain that turned into ice. He reported that the
snow removal schedule is updated on the City’s website weekly.

Mr. Bagwill asked if garbage pickups were delayed; Mr. Jacobson reported that crews had been
behind in the morning because of the weather, but they caught up in the afternoon.

Mayor Matherly stated that he and Chief of Staff Mike Meeks have been dealing with some
vehicle impound issues and that people need to know it is expensive to get a car out of impound.
He stated the Work Session about the Permanent Fund was informative and shared that he is
happy the balance has increased so much over the past few years. Mayor Matherly reported he
attended the Project Homeless Connect event at the JP Jones Center, and there was increased
turnout over prior years. He cautioned the public to drive safely and to slow down because of
poor road conditions, and he mentioned the 23-vehicle pileup on the Johansen Expressway.

NEW BUSINESS

a) Resolution No. 4820 — A Resolution to Apply for Funds from the Alaska Division of
Homeland Security for the FFY2018 State Homeland Security Program. Introduced by
Mayor Matherly.

Mr. Bagwill, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to APPROVE Resolution No. 4820.

Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, moved to SUBSTITUTE Resolution No. 4820, as
Amended (Hand-carried), for Resolution No. 4820.

Mayor Matherly called for objection, and hearing none, so
ORDERED.

Mr. Cleworth requested a staff report on the changes in Resolution No. 4820, as Amended.
Chief Styers stated the original match funding was removed, because a match is not required. He
stated they also arrived at better overtime calculations.

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 9 of 71



A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO.
4820, AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS:

YEAS: Bagwill, Cleworth, Rogers, Huntington, Therrien, Pruhs
NAYS: None

Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED and
Resolution No. 4820, as Amended, APPROVED.

b) Resolution No. 4821 — A Resolution to Apply for Funds from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) for the FFY2017 Assistance to Firefighters Grant.
Introduced by Mayor Matherly.

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

C) Resolution No. 4822 — A Resolution Approving Continued Benefits for the Brandt
Family. Introduced by Mayor Matherly and All City Council Members.

Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to APPROVE Resolution No. 4822.

Mr. Pruhs spoke to the supreme sacrifice of Sergeant Allen Brand. He stated that the Council
needs to do right by Sgt. Brandt’s family, and he asked for a moment of silence.

Ms. Huntington expressed agreement with Mr. Pruhs.

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO.
4822 AS FOLLOWS:

YEAS: Huntington, Bagwill, Therrien, Pruhs, Cleworth, Rogers
NAYS: None

Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED and
Resolution No. 4822 APPROVED.

d) Resolution No. 4823 — A Resolution in Support of Senate Bill 125, An Act Relating to
the Financing and Issuance of Bonds for a Liquefied Natural Gas Production System and
Natural Gas Distribution System. Introduced by Mayor Matherly.

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

e) Ordinance No. 6069 — An Ordinance Ratifying a Labor Agreement Between the City of
Fairbanks and the AFL-CIO Crafts Council. Introduced by Mayor Matherly.

ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

a) Committee Reports
City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 10 of 71



Permanent Fund Review Board — Ms. Therrien stated the Permanent Fund Review Board met
earlier in day, and she shared that the fund is doing well. She stated that they may look at some
different investment categories in the future.

Public Safety Commission — Ms. Huntington stated the Commission would hold a special
meeting the following day at the Fairbanks Police Department (FPD) to discuss marijuana
regulations. She reported the Commission discussed the high number of homicides in Fairbanks
in 2017, a record high of 13. She stated the Commission discussed whether it was a fluke or a
trend and that they want to renew their mission to help the Mayor and Council.

Polaris Work Group — Mr. Pruhs reported the group met on January 23 and discussed teaming
up with the Fairbanks Downtown Association to help raise the $115,000 needed to buy the note
on the building.

Leqislative Advocacy Group — Ms. Rogers stated the group met telephonically with Lobbyist
Yuri Morgan and discussed the state bill regarding smoking; she stated the group will meet again
on Thursday.

FMATS Policy Committee — Mr. Cleworth stated there were large cost overruns on the Noble
Street project, and reallocating funds was discussed. He stated he was concerned that the City
has been asked to increase their match of funds and explained that there is a Council-approved
limit for matching funds. He spoke to the importance of putting limits on dollar amounts when
projects are being approved. He stated it is unfortunate that funds may be taken from the
Barnette Street project, and he stated that it may get pushed back.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL

a) Memo Regarding City Fire Department Manning and Mutual Aid

Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Cleworth, moved to ACCEPT the Memo Regarding City Fire
Department Manning and Mutual Aid.

Mr. Cleworth requested that Fire Chief Jim Styers start providing the Council with the reports
given to the Public Safety Commission on call statistics. He asked the Chief to explain what the
different call categories mean: alpha, bravo, charlie, delta, echo. Chief Styers stated that for
calls regarding a fire, “alpha” means smoke in an area, and the scale progresses with severity; he
stated that *“echo™ means a structure is on fire with flames in the building. Chief Styers
explained that dispatchers determine the importance of calls and let the department know the
level of an emergency based on the information they are given. Mr. Cleworth asked Chief
Styers to speak to mutual aid for ambulances; Chief Styers stated that when no City ambulance is
available to respond to a call, the Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) system automatically
dispatches the call to the next closest available ambulance. Mr. Cleworth asked how many
ambulances there are at FFD; Chief Styers stated there are three in the station and a fourth one in
storage for backup. He stated that only two ambulances can be run with minimum manning of
nine personnel. Mr. Cleworth referenced the high number of mutual aid responses provided to
the City by the Steese and University Fire Departments.

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 11 of 71



Mr. Pruhs asked if there is a way to generate a report that shows the different classifications of
emergency calls FFD responds to. Chief Styers stated he could generate a report on all past data,
and he could start giving the Council regular updates.

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE MEMO
REGARDING CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT MANNING AND MUTUAL AID AS FOLLOWS:

YEAS: Cleworth, Pruhs, Rogers, Huntington, Bagwill, Therrien
NAYS: None
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.

b) Memo Acknowledging Payment of FPD Employee Lateral Hire Bonus
ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

C) Public Safety Commission Meeting Minutes of October 10, 2017
ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

d) Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee Meeting Minutes of December 5, 2017
ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

e) Hotel/Motel Discretionary Fund Committee Meeting Minutes of December 8, 2017
ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

f) Appointments to the Fairbanks Diversity Council

APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS

Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks — Mr. Turney reported he attended the opioid event at
the Westmark Hotel and that the Mayor’s story about his daughter is heartbreaking. He spoke to
transgender issues and asked why the media was not reporting on the potty project. He stated he
would like to know what is going on behind the scenes with the Fairbanks Diversity Council.

Victor Buberge, P.O. Box 58192, Fairbanks — Mr. Buberge stated he has lived in Fairbanks
permanently since 1977; he stated that he has never seen a Native Indian or Eskimo on the
Fairbanks Police force. He spoke to the wages of FPD employees and asked why they get so
much overtime. He suggested the Council follow Detroit’s lead and cut FPD wages by 10%.

Sean White, 899 Senate Drive, Fairbanks — Mr. White stated that his salary appears inflated
because he earns overtime; he stated that when the City calls, he goes to work. He stated the
number one way to reduce overtime is to staff adequately; he stated the City will not staff
departments sufficiently. He stated he has worked for the City for almost 25 years and that every

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 12 of 71



year the overtime budgets are out of control due to inadequate staffing. Mr. White reported he
just took a 4% pay decrease because the Council chose not to fund the Fairbanks Firefighters
Union (FFU) contract. He stated each ordinance has a fiscal note attached, and it was wrong for
the Council to amend the budget on with floor without discussing it in a Finance Committee
meeting. He stated nobody knows how much the Council took from the FFD when they non-
funded healthcare, took away their 1% raise, and cut one position. He stated the Council should
not approve the AFL-CIO contract because that would be treating one union better than another.

Charles Renner, 3080 Greenbrier Way, North Pole — Mr. Renner stated he has worked for the
City for three years, and he read aloud the City’s mission statement. He stated that Fairbanks has
become a less desirable place to work and live. He spoke to the history of labor negotiations
between the City and the FFU. He stated the morale at the department dwindled during labor
negotiations, but got better when the Council funded the arbitrator’s award. Mr. Renner
indicated that when the Council chose to non-fund the contract, morale decreased. He stated that
the department’s call volume has increased by 20% since he was hired, yet they continue to be
understaffed. He stated he has stated looking for new employment because the Council
continues to dump money into the Permanent Fund and go back on agreements with the union.
Mr. Renner spoke to a Council member’s recent comment about the current Council being the
best Council to work with; he stated he does not believe that to be true.

Michael Farrell, P.O. Box 83327, Fairbanks — Mr. Farrell stated he has been looking into a
blockchain; he stated that a lot of people do not know what peoples’” wages are.

COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS

Ms. Huntington thanked everyone for attending the Council meeting and for all of the hard
work done at the meeting.

Ms. Rogers spoke to the reason for the purposeful high cost of fees for a DUI; she stated that the
fees serve as a deterrent to drinking and driving. She stated that people who lose a family
member to a DUI feel the impact for years and years. She stated she turns a deaf ear to people
when they complain about the cost of their vehicle impoundment because of the choices they
made. Ms. Rogers thanked Mayor Matherly for his continued effort to fight the opioid crisis
devastating the community. She stated she was charmed by all the people who showed up to
support Mr. Mensik and the Kodiak Jack’s liquor license. She stated she enjoyed seeing people
support for their employer and coworkers. She welcomed Ms. Therrien back from vacation and
shared that she was missed.

Ms. Therrien stated it is good to be back, but it was refreshing to have the break. She stated she
did not speak much to the liquor license renewals but that she was impressed by Mr. Mensik’s
work with Chief Jewkes; she stated it changed her mind on the vote.

Mr. Pruhs stated the that North Pole identified their water contamination issue seven years ago
and are just now addressing it. He stated that the City of Fairbanks identified the Fire Training
Center contamination issue in August 2016 and started construction to fix the issue in December
2016.

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 13 of 71



Mr. Cleworth stated he attended the memorial service of Charlotte Wilbur, a well-known
Fairbanks pioneer who led an incredibly interesting life. He thanked Mr. Jacobson for the Public
Works update and for the work in restoring City Hall. He spoke to the reasons why the Council
puts money into the Permanent Fund, and he stated that the Fund is not inflation-proof. He
stated the Council rarely puts extra money into the Permanent Fund, and it takes the maximum
draw each year to fund daily operations. He spoke to the importance of protecting the Fund.

Mr. Bagwill thanked everyone for their comments, for being involved in local government, and
for having their voice be heard. He asked people to be mindful of pedestrians when they are out
and about. He reminded everyone of the prescription drug depository at the FPD and stated that
the opioid problem remains constant. He encouraged parents to talk to their children about drugs
and alcohol. He spoke to events he attended since the last regular Council meeting.

Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Bagwill, moved to go into Executive Session for the purpose of
discussing FFU Labor Negotiations.

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED.
Mayor Matherly called for a brief recess.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) FFU Labor Negotiations

The City Council met in Executive Session to discuss FFU Labor Negotiations. Direction was
given to the negotiating team, and no action was taken.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Bagwill, seconded by Ms. Rogers, moved to ADJOURN the meeting.
Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED.

Mayor Matherly declared the meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m.

JIM MATHERLY, MAYOR

ATTEST:

D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, CMC, CITY CLERK

Transcribed by: EB

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 29, 2018
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 11

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 14 of 71



City of Fairbanks

Office of the City Clerk

800 Cushman Street

Fairbanks, AK 99701

MEMORANDUM

Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT: Liquor License Renewals
DATE: March 13, 2018

(907)459-6715
Fax (907)459-6710

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the
following liquor license renewals:

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address
5436 Hoarfrost Distilling Distillery Hoarfrost Distilling, LLC 3501 Lathrop Street, Unit F
- Wholesale — Malt White Mountain ;
5500 | K & L Distributors Alaska Beverage & Wine Beverage, LLC 945 Elizabeth Street
252 Club Alaskan Beverage Dispensary Jerwater, Inc. 901 Old Steese Highway
. . Retirement Community

1059 Raven Landing Center Beverage Dispensary of Fairbanks 1222 Cowles Street
995 Oaken Keg #2754 Package Store Safeway, Inc. 3627 Airport Way
999 Oaken Keg #3410 Package Store Safeway, Inc. 30 College Road
4941 Seoul Gate Restaurant Restaurant/Eating Place Seoul Gate, Inc. 958 Cowles Street
3170 The Odom Corporation Wholesale — General The Odom Corporation 3101 Peger Road, Bay 1

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether or not to protest liquor license
renewals after holding a public hearing.

Per the Council’s request, the Police Department has included a call report for each location
(attached).

There are no_departmental protests to the above-listed applications for renewal. Please
contact me if you need any further information.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

15 of 71




Hoar frosst

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Event Report
Event ID: 2017-034421 Call Ref #: 666 Date/Time Received: 07/07/17 17:02:00
Rpt #: Prime S7 Services Involved
Call Source: SELF Unit:) ockwooD, KURT LAW
Location: 3501 LATHROP ST
STANDARD AVE Jur: FB Service: LAW  Agency: FPD
-ST.
VAN HORN RD St/Beat: BESO District: RA: RASO
Business: 3 DRAGONS MARTIAL ARTS ACADEMY Phone: (907) 474-3746 GP: GP96
Nature: Sl - BAR CHECK Alarm Lvl: 1 Priority: 5 Medical Priority:
Reclassified Nature:
Caller: Alarm:
Addr: Phone: Alarm Type:
Vehicle #: St AK Report Only:  No Race: Sex: Age:

Call Taker: Unit:S7

Console: QRYSRV

Geo-Verified Addr.:

NRP

Close Comments:

Yes . Nature Summary Code: Disposition:

Notes: UDTS: {S7} NO FURTHER 10-60°S [07/07/17 17:10:09 1204]

HOARFROST DISTILLING [07/07/2017 17:02:00 Unit:S7]

Times
Call Received:; 07/07/17 17:02:00 Time From Call eived

Call Routed: 07/07/17 17:02:01 000:00:01 Unit Reaction: (1st Dispatch to 1st Arrive)
Call Take Finished; 07/07/17 17:02:01 000:00:01 En-Route: (1st Dispatch to 1st En-Route)

1st Dispatch: 07/07/17 17:02:01 000:00:01 (Time Held) On-Scene:  000:21:09 (7st Arrive to Last Clear)

1st En-Route: 07/07/17 17:02:01 000:00:01

1st Arrive; 07/07/17 17:02:01 000:00:01 (Reaction Time)
Last Clear: 07/07/17 17:23:10 000:21:10
Radio Log
Close
Unit Empl ID Type Description Time Stamp Comments Code  User
S7 1126 D Dispatched 07/07/17 17:02:01 HOARFROST DISTILLING Unit:S7
S7 1126 E En-Route 07/07/17 17:02:01 HOARFROST DISTILLING Unit:S7
S7 1126 A Arrived 07/07/17 17:02:01 HOARFROST DISTILLING Unit:S7
S7 1126 NO {S7} NO FURTHER 10-6 07/07/17 17:10:09 1204
S7 1126 C Cleared 07/07/17 17:23:10 NRP  Unit:S7
Event Log
Close
Unit Empl ID Type Description Time Stamp Comments Code  User
TR  Time Received 07/07/17 17:02:00 By: SELF Unit:S7

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 08:51:38 | User ID: 1225
e o et RARat C Nareh T 2018 16 d7A0e 10f 2



s

»

Event iD; 2017-034421 Call Ref # 668 Si - BAR CHECK at 3501 LATHROP ST
FIN  Finished Call Taking 0707147 17:02201 Unit:87
VCH Viewed Call History 07/07/17 17:02:32 Location Information 1204
ARM Added Remarks 07/07/17 17:10.08 1204
RSW Reset Watchdog Timer  07/07/17 17:10:10 Units: $7 >>> 30Min. 1204
Event Report

Page 2 of 2
City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 17 of 71



| Link || EventiD | Callrecv frp\\ﬂ-]& } b 1

Eventinfo | Notes | Times | REE Log | Other [Loo: IS0 Eniy ] AniiaL | Patients | Employes.| Names,| Vehicies |

l@ Prev |©@ Nex | Add [ Duplicate |[§ Deets

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 18 of 71



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Club Alaskan 907 Old Steese Highway
02/20/2017 - 02/20/2018

Prime
Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
17003384 10/13/2017 14:59 S| - FOLLOW-UP 901 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 10/13/2017 15:30:08
17003384 10/12/2017 12:05 S| - FOLLOW-UP 901 OLD STEESE HWY 015 RPT 10/12/2017 12:56:32
10/11/2017 06:29 ADMINISTRATIVE 901 OLD STEESE HWY 015 NRP 10/11/2017 14:14:32
09/22/2017 05:25 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 901 OLD STEESE HWY L5 NRP  09/22/2017 05:49:5C
08/28/2017 14:16 10-36 901 OLD STEESE HWY 141 NRP  08/28/2017 14:17:0C
07/29/2017 22:16 OFFICER ADVICE 901 OLD STEESE HWY 030 NRP  07/29/2017 22:43:41

Total Number of Events Listed: 6

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 08:56:35 | User ID: 1225

Wecc-anplosgitgBeriontiy@ndd stack o vandisiWahBengrtNumbers

19 of 71 Pane 1 of



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Raven Landing Center 1222 Cowles Street

02/20/2017 - 02/20/2018

Prime
Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
12/09/2017 00:45 10-36 1222 COWLES ST 016 WAR  12/09/2017 00:48:42
10/10/2017 15:19 PARKING COMPLAINT 1222 COWLES ST DESKNRP  10/10/2017 16:42:3€
17003229 09/14/2017 20:39 DISTURBANCE - 1222 COWLES ST 016 NRP  09/14/2017 21:21:11
17001116 04/08/2017 13:50 FOUND PROPERTY - 1222 COWLES ST 026 RPT  04/08/2017 15:10:42
17001087 04/06/2017 10:41 ATTEMPTED VEHICLE 1222 COWLES ST 01 RPT  04/06/2017 11:48:3%

Total Number of Events Listed: 5

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 08:57:31 | User ID: 1225

Wecc-applos@itgdeadioitEyerntidistack et vandristeh 2ensrtNumbers

20 of 71 Pane 1 nf



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Oaken Keg #2754 3627 Airport Way

02/20/2017 - 02/20/2018

Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
18000628 02/20/2018 21:20 THEFT FROM 3627 AIRPORT WAY L7 RPT  02/20/2018 23:31:08
02/20/2018 17:36 FOUND PROPERTY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 015 NRP  02/21/2018 07:13:42
18000609 02/19/2018 19:59 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY O1 RPT  02/19/2018 21:56:5¢
02/16/2018 18:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY O1 NRP  02/16/2018 19:10:4¢
18000200 02/16/2018 16:20 S| - ADMIN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 RPT  02/16/2018 16:31:01
02/15/2018 00:36 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O3 NRP  02/15/2018 01:55:3¢
02/13/2018 18:41 S| - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY O1 NRP  02/13/2018 18:51:57
02/12/2018 06:12 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  02/12/2018 07:02:5¢
02/12/2018 00:14 S| - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 036 NRP  02/12/2018 00:24:5C
02/11/2018 00:58 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  02/11/2018 01:05:57
02/09/2018 13:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 07 NRP  02/09/2018 13:56:14
02/09/2018 09:24 MISCHIEF - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  02/09/2018 09:45:12
02/07/2018 16:22 WELFARE CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 08 NRP  02/07/2018 17:41:4¢F
02/06/2018 01:19 Si - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 036 NRP  02/06/2018 01:29:1C
18000428 02/05/2018 12:47 MVC - NO INJURIES - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  02/05/2018 13:36:32
02/04/2018 23:32 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  02/04/2018 23:59:58
02/04/2018 19:12 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S3 NRP  02/04/2018 19:41:17
01/30/2018 10:30 ADMINISTRATIVE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 015 NRP  01/31/2018 07:53:44
01/29/2018 23:49 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  01/30/2018 00:12:1¢
01/27/2018 15:25 WELFARE CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  01/27/2018 15:57:58
01/26/2018 19:32 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  01/26/2018 20:15:12
18000313 01/26/2018 18:27 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  01/26/2018 19:33:52
01/26/2018 16:33 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 08 NRP  01/26/2018 17:56:51
01/24/2018 12:13 ADMINISTRATIVE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  01/24/2018 12:36:5¢
01/22/2018 18:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 NRP  01/22/2018 19:04:44
01/22/2018 16:04 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  01/22/2018 17:05:1¢
18000228 01/19/2018 19:23 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 RPT  01/19/2018 20:38:52
01/18/2018 10:19 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  01/18/2018 12:25:3¢
18000208 01/18/2018 08:46 SI - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 RPT  01/18/2018 09:18:02
18000206 01/17/2018 23:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 RPT  01/18/2018 00:33:32
18000200 01/17/2018 10:57 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 015 RPT  01/17/2018 11:54:1¢
18000188 01/16/2018 15:38 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 RPT  01/16/2018 18:03:1C
01/13/2018 23:38 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  01/14/2018 00:22:07
01/13/2018 18:14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 08 NRP  01/13/2018 19:06:5¢
01/09/2018 02:40 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  01/09/2018 03:05:1€
: 01/09/2018 00:17 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  01/09/2018 00:33:18
18000077 01/07/2018 08:48 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  01/07/2018 09:15:52
01/04/2018 19:54 INDECENCY/LEWDNE 3627 AIRPORT WAY O30 NRP  01/04/2018 20:29:2€
01/04/2018 11:45 HIT & RUN 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  01/04/2018 11:49:4C
01/03/2018 14:02 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  01/03/2018 14:29:1€
18000033 01/03/2018 13:27 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S1 RPT  01/03/2018 14:12:5¢€

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 08:59:58 | User ID: 1225

\\fecc-app\odsityaBountid Aents Bare Evilata WathREfbrtNumbers

21 of 71

Pane 1 nf



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
12/26/2017 14:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP 12/26/2017 15:05:42
12/26/2017 13:14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP 12/26/2017 13:49:5¢
12/24/2017 13:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  12/24/2017 13:45:4¢
12/23/2017 10:45 10-36 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 WAR  12/23/2017 10:50:34
17004401 12/23/2017 10:18 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 RPT 12/23/2017 11:44:08
17004421 12/22/2017 21:09 LOST PROPERTY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT 12/22/2017 22:03:01
17004413 12/22/2017 15:36 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT 12/22/2017 16:50:08
12/22/2017 11:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 036 NRP 12/22/2017 11:45:42
12/21/2017 19:24 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 NRP 12/21/2017 19:51:12
12/19/2017 03:38 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  12/19/2017 03:54:1¢
12/18/2017 23:15 WELFARE CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  12/18/2017 23:37:42
12/16/2017 23:13 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  12/16/2017 23:40:2€
12/16/2017 14:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 NRP  12/16/2017 20:22:12
12/13/2017 16:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 SUBL 12/13/2017 17:29:11
12/12/2017 17:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  12/12/2017 18:47:2€
17004294 12/12/2017 04:55 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 RPT 12/12/2017 07:04:14
12/11/2017 22:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 NRP  12/12/2017 00:31:58
12/11/2017 19:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  12/11/2017 19:30:0C
12/11/2017 16:57 Sl - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  12/11/2017 16:58:25
12/10/2017 07:14 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  12/10/2017 07:54:54
12/09/2017 16:07 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  12/09/2017 16:43:0%
12/07/2017 00:26 THEFT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 NRP  12/07/2017 01:33:4%
12/06/2017 16:40 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  12/06/2017 17:23:3€
12/06/2017 14:43 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 011 NRP  12/06/2017 15:33:42
, 12/06/2017 04:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  12/06/2017 04:49:5C
17004195 12/05/2017 18:33 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 011 RPT 12/05/2017 20:10:11
12/04/2017 20:43 S| - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  12/04/2017 20:52:24
11/30/2017 15:37 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  11/30/2017 15:49:21
11/29/2017 12:09 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  11/29/2017 12:47:27
11/29/2017 11:45 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 026 NRP  11/29/2017 12:49:07
11/28/2017 17:26 PAST MVC - ALPHA 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  11/28/2017 17:31:5¢
11/27/2017 22:29 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  11/27/2017 22:53:3¢
11/27/2017 20:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY S10 NRP  11/27/2017 21:04:14
11/26/2017 19:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  11/26/2017 21:10:28
11/26/2017 03:56 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP  11/26/2017 04:23:4¢
17004087 11/25/2017 18:13 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 RPT 11/25/2017 19:05:24
11/21/2017 10:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  11/21/2017 10:38:3€
11/21/2017 05:36 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  11/21/2017 06:02:01
11/21/2017 01:42 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 NRP  11/21/2017 01:58:5¢
17004016 11/19/2017 00:11 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT 11/19/2017 01:07:5¢
11/18/2017 17:40 PAST MVC - ALPHA 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  11/18/2017 17:59:12
11/18/2017 15:45 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  11/18/2017 15:51:21
17004011 11/18/2017 15:12 THREAT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 RPT 11/18/2017 15:45:2€
11/18/2017 14:26 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 036 SUBL 11/18/2017 14:43:2€
11/17/2017 23:30 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  11/17/2017 23:56:4%
Oaken Key #2754 3627 Airport Way Page 2 of

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

22 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
11/16/2017 19:05 INDECENCY/LEWDNE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 NRP  11/16/2017 23:51:1¢
17003974 11/16/2017 03:56 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 RPT  11/16/2017 04:57:2€
17003979 11/15/2017 21:51 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 RPT  11/15/2017 23:16:3¢€
17003640 11/15/2017 06:06 S| - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 RPT  11/15/2017 06:37:51
17003974 11/15/2017 02:25 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 RPT  11/15/2017 04:45:3¢
11/15/2017 00:03 DUI - PARKED - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O3 NRP  11/15/2017 00:24:42
17003963 11/14/2017 09:17 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 RPT  11/14/2017 12:49:0¢
17003952 11/12/2017 23:18 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 RPT  11/12/2017 23:46:07
17003878 11/11/2017 05:01 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  11/11/2017 05:04:02
11/08/2017 22:41 VERBAL DOMESTIC 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  11/09/2017 01:36:38
11/07/2017 14:19 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 3627 AIRPORT WAY O1 NRP  11/07/2017 16:33:4¢
11/07/2017 01:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  11/07/2017 02:05:34
11/05/2017 16:00 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  11/05/2017 16:18:0€
11/03/2017 05:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 NRP  11/03/2017 06:03:21
11/01/2017 04:18 DISTURBANCE 3627 AIRPORT WAY L5 NRP  11/01/2017 04:56:0€
10/31/2017 01:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  10/31/2017 02:11:5¢
17003775 10/30/2017 02:07 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK RPT  10/30/2017 08:34:4%
17003706 10/24/2017 15:23 DUI - PARKED - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 RPT  10/24/2017 17:13:0¢
17003684 10/22/2017 19:58 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 RPT  10/22/2017 21:49:4€
17003672 10/21/2017 20:05 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT  10/21/2017 20:47:2C
10/21/2017 19:27 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  10/21/2017 19:57:12
10/20/2017 03:59 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  10/20/2017 04:32:31
17003640 10/19/2017 06:03 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 RPT  10/19/2017 07:33:42
10/18/2017 20:49 SI - AOA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 NRP  10/18/2017 21:00:41
17003636 10/18/2017 18:25 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK RPT  10/18/2017 18:50:4€
17003529 10/11/2017 04:46 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 RPT  10/11/2017 05:24:22
10/06/2017 08:12 DUI - PARKED - 3627 AIRPORT WAY L6 NRP  10/06/2017 08:33:01
17003413 10/03/2017 02:25 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK RPT  10/03/2017 02:50:0C
10/02/2017 18:42 WELFARE CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  10/02/2017 19:25:0%
09/28/2017 12:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  09/28/2017 12:55:54
09/26/2017 06:36 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  09/26/2017 06:50:01
17003328 09/26/2017 04:29 TRESPASS - PAST - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 RPT  09/26/2017 05:31:25
17003317 09/25/2017 10:22 FRAUD/FORGERY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 RPT  09/25/2017 14:46:21
09/24/2017 01:32 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  09/24/2017 01:52:1¢
09/18/2017 09:20 S| - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  09/18/2017 09:26:3€
09/18/2017 02:15 SUSPICIOUS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  09/18/2017 02:46:58
09/17/2017 17:04 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  09/17/2017 18:01:01
09/17/2017 15:58 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY O1 NRP  09/17/2017 16:17:5C
09/14/2017 03:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 05 NRP  09/14/2017 04:48:1¢
09/11/2017 16:43 S| - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  09/11/2017 17:22:03
09/11/2017 03:36 TRESPASS 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 NRP  09/11/2017 04:07:44
09/11/2017 02:03 S| - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  09/11/2017 02:13:3¢
17003141 09/10/2017 20:14 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 RPT  09/10/2017 22:49:01
17003137 09/10/2017 14:34 DAMAGE/VANDALISM 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT  09/10/2017 16:17:32
09/03/2017 10:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 026 NRP  09/03/2017 11:45:0€

Oaken Key #2754 3627 Airport Way
City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

Page 3 of
23 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
09/02/2017 18:55 SHOTS FIRE - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  09/02/2017 19:25:3C
09/01/2017 18:21 Sl - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 02 NRP  09/01/2017 18:33:1C
17002954 08/29/2017 18:53 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 RPT  08/29/2017 22:41:0C
08/28/2017 22:10 DUI - PARKED - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  08/28/2017 22:39:48
08/27/2017 23:34 10-36 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 WAR 08/27/2017 23:36:3%
08/24/2017 18:19 DVPO SERVICE 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  08/26/2017 09:18:1%
08/20/2017 18:45 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  08/20/2017 19:06:48
17002813 08/17/2017 17:55 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT 08/17/2017 18:59:32
08/16/2017 12:56 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 010 NRP  08/16/2017 13:23:1¢8
08/16/2017 03:46 S| - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  08/16/2017 03:55:1C
08/15/2017 15:47 CIVIL PROBLEM 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 NRP  08/15/2017 21:18:12
08/15/2017 07:24 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  08/15/2017 08:23:3C
17002755 08/13/2017 07:27 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 RPT 08/13/2017 07:56:57
08/12/2017 06:52 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  08/12/2017 07:31:02
17002720 08/10/2017 13:34 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 RPT 08/10/2017 18:09:5¢
08/10/2017 01:04 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 3627 AIRPORT WAY L6 NRP  08/10/2017 01:36:32
08/08/2017 23:45 REDDI 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  08/08/2017 23:55:3C
08/05/2017 22:19 NUISANCE - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  08/05/2017 22:36:2¢
08/04/2017 20:56 Sl - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  08/04/2017 21:11:4¢
17002645 08/04/2017 13:24 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT 08/04/2017 15:56:43
08/04/2017 02:08 Sl - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  08/04/2017 02:14:07
08/03/2017 23:50 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  08/04/2017 00:13:12
08/03/2017 20:07 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  08/03/2017 20:19:4¢
07/30/2017 18:15 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  07/30/2017 18:41:27
17002442 07/26/2017 13:38 ADMINISTRATIVE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 RPT 07/26/2017 14:27:4C
17002497 07/25/2017 08:20 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY S1 RPT 07/25/2017 14:08:32
17002496 07/25/2017 02:08 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 RPT 07/25/2017 02:47:4%
07/23/2017 17:04 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  07/23/2017 17:53:43
07/23/2017 05:19 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  07/23/2017 06:16:01
17002428 07/20/2017 12:12 FRAUD/FORGERY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 RPT 07/20/2017 13:41:27
07/20/2017 08:45 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  07/20/2017 08:54:24
07/18/2017 18:58 PAST HIT & RUN - 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  07/18/2017 19:01:5¢€
07/16/2017 23:15 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 SUBL 07/16/2017 23:39:1¢€
17002373 07/15/2017 07:43 SUPPLEMENTAL- 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 RPT 07/15/2017 09:00:4¢
17002373 07/15/2017 04:18 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 RPT 07/15/2017 05:16:14
17002372 07/15/2017 03:45 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 029 RPT 07/15/2017 04:46:22
07/14/2017 23:59 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  07/15/2017 00:02:5C
07/13/2017 19:40 ROAD HAZARD/VID - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 SUBL 07/13/2017 20:02:0C
07/11/2017 07:28 ALARM BURGLARY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 010 FAB 07/11/2017 07:44:3C
07/09/2017 15:24 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  07/09/2017 15:45:2C
07/07/2017 05:48 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  07/07/2017 06:03:3¢8
07/05/2017 22:23 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 NRP  07/05/2017 23:40:3<
07/05/2017 19:31 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  07/05/2017 20:37:44
17002219 07/03/2017 09:14 FRAUD/FORGERY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT 07/03/2017 10:02:32
07/02/2017 04:11 WEAPONS INCIDENT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 NRP  07/02/2017 04:24:22
Oaken Key #2754 3627 Airport Way Page 4 of

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

24 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
17002188 06/30/2017 17:55 SEND PROTOCOL 3627 AIRPORT WAY L6 RPT  06/30/2017 18:21:2C
06/28/2017 01:59 SUSP - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 NRP  06/28/2017 02:21:4C
06/27/2017 02:53 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  06/27/2017 03:24:2¢
06/26/2017 18:54 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  06/26/2017 19:09:4C
06/26/2017 18:01 URINATING/DEFECAT 3627 AIRPORT WAY L6 NRP  06/26/2017 19:31:02
17002112 06/25/2017 07:34 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 RPT 06/25/2017 08:20:24
06/24/2017 20:01 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  06/24/2017 20:26:11
06/24/2017 19:19 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  06/24/2017 19:28:42
06/24/2017 14:22 DV - PHYSICAL - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S1 NRP  06/24/2017 15:05:04
06/23/2017 17:51 DISTURBANCE 3627 AIRPORT WAY S7 NRP  06/23/2017 18:28:0€
06/21/2017 19:21 HARASSMENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S7 NRP  06/21/2017 19:27:42
06/18/2017 18:25 WELFARE CHECK - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  06/18/2017 18:48:32
06/17/2017 14:45 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  06/17/2017 15:50:18
06/14/2017 03:12 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  06/14/2017 03:52:27
06/13/2017 16:59 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  06/13/2017 18:11:5C
06/13/2017 05:54 10-36 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 WAR 06/13/2017 05:57:2¢
06/11/2017 22:56 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 SUBL 06/11/2017 23:05:3¢
06/10/2017 20:53 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY S1 NRP  06/11/2017 11:21:3€
06/03/2017 21:56 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  06/03/2017 22:24:22
06/03/2017 17:48 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  06/03/2017 18:46:0C
06/03/2017 05:16 TRESPASS LETTER 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  06/03/2017 05:18:22
06/02/2017 17:37 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 011 SUBL 06/02/2017 18:04:04
17001835 06/02/2017 14:41 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 010 RPT 06/02/2017 15:15:1C
06/02/2017 00:02 TRESPASS LETTER 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  06/02/2017 00:05:27
17001814 05/31/2017 20:48 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 RPT 05/31/2017 21:43:51
17001805 05/31/2017 05:34 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 RPT 05/31/2017 06:41:37
17001804 05/31/2017 04:31 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 RPT 05/31/2017 05:26:2%
05/30/2017 23:50 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  05/31/2017 00:07:32
05/30/2017 21:26 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  05/30/2017 21:34:1¢
05/30/2017 18:28 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  05/30/2017 18:52:18
17001799 05/30/2017 15:23 FRAUD/FORGERY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT 05/30/2017 21:24:21
17001787 05/30/2017 00:25 SEND PROTOCOL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT 05/30/2017 01:13:0¢
05/29/2017 16:19 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  05/29/2017 17:08:0C
17001774 05/29/2017 01:18 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 RPT 05/29/2017 01:57:12
05/29/2017 00:46 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  05/29/2017 01:27:47
17001772 05/28/2017 20:16 Sl - FIELD CONTACT 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 RPT 05/28/2017 20:42:51
17001733 05/25/2017 21:02 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 RPT 05/25/2017 21:44:1C
05/24/2017 22:19 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  05/24/2017 23:18:5C
05/24/2017 19:05 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 011 SUBL 05/24/2017 19:23:22
05/24/2017 01:54 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 NRP  05/24/2017 02:20:21
05/23/2017 14:44 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  05/23/2017 15:21:2C
17001625 05/18/2017 23:52 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 RPT 05/19/2017 00:19:27
17001624 05/18/2017 21:55 REDDI 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 RPT 05/19/2017 00:11:4C
05/17/2017 01:14 SEND PROTOCOL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  05/17/2017 01:34:44
05/12/2017 19:34 URGENT WELFARE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  05/12/2017 19:43:21

Oaken Key #2754 3627 Airport Way
City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

Page 5 of
25 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
17001530 05/11/2017 06:10 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  05/11/2017 07:28:24
05/10/2017 14:01 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 010 NRP  05/10/2017 14:20:52
05/08/2017 23:38 S| - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 NRP  05/08/2017 23:44:1%
17001491 05/08/2017 18:38 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY S10 RPT  05/08/2017 19:05:42
17001479 05/08/2017 02:15 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  05/08/2017 03:21:34
05/07/2017 21:22 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 032 NRP  05/07/2017 21:46:08
05/05/2017 23:41 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  05/05/2017 23:57:0%
05/05/2017 22:08 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  05/05/2017 22:30:3¢
05/04/2017 06:21 SEND PROTOCOL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 NRP  05/04/2017 06:32:4%
05/03/2017 21:42 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 01 NRP  05/03/2017 23:01:4C
05/02/2017 21:11 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  05/02/2017 21:30:3C
04/30/2017 11:36 SI - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 022 NRP  04/30/2017 11:43:0¢
04/29/2017 23:12 REDDI 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  04/29/2017 23:48:3¢
04/29/2017 05:53 DV - PHYSICAL - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  04/29/2017 06:05:4¢
17001378 04/29/2017 03:40 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT  04/29/2017 04:42:5Z
04/29/2017 00:41 S| - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY S9 NRP  04/29/2017 01:01:1£
17001351 04/26/2017 06:04 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  04/26/2017 07:22:21
04/26/2017 00:35 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 023 NRP  04/26/2017 01:36:07
04/25/2017 09:31 PAST HIT & RUN - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  04/25/2017 10:29:07
17001342 04/24/2017 21:54 DV - PHYSICAL - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  04/25/2017 01:02:1€
04/21/2017 18:28 THEFT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  04/21/2017 18:39:1€
1701258 04/21/2017 04:09 S| - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY L5 RPT  04/21/2017 04:26:32
17001293 04/21/2017 01:03 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 RPT  04/21/2017 02:04:31
04/19/2017 22:05 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 NRP  04/19/2017 22:17:2€
17001258 04/19/2017 13:55 ADMINISTRATIVE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 RPT  04/19/2017 16:19:51
04/17/2017 23:09 SEND PROTOCOL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 017 NRP  04/17/2017 23:31:04
04/15/2017 16:55 SUSP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  04/15/2017 17:27:01
04/14/2017 16:33 WELFARE CHECK - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 011 SUBL 04/14/2017 16:52:41
17001190 04/13/2017 23:38 THEFT - DELTA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 023 RPT  04/14/2017 00:40:11
04/13/2017 04:09 AOA - NON URGENT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  04/13/2017 04:33:34
04/10/2017 17:43 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY L6 NRP  04/10/2017 17:57:27
04/10/2017 15:36 ADMINISTRATIVE 3627 AIRPORT WAY 04 NRP  04/10/2017 16:19:51
17001136 04/10/2017 05:59 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  04/10/2017 06:43:2C
17001122 04/09/2017 06:25 INCAPACITATED 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 RPT  04/09/2017 07:32:0€
04/03/2017 22:10 THEFT - 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP  04/03/2017 22:30:5¢
17001028 04/01/2017 16:29 S| - FLAG DOWN 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  04/01/2017 17:10:5€
03/27/2017 05:55 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 3627 AIRPORT WAY 06 NRP  03/27/2017 06:04:41
17000944 03/26/2017 08:02 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 NRP  03/26/2017 08:27:52
17000948 03/25/2017 15:07 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKRPT  03/25/2017 15:51:3¢
17000937 03/24/2017 14:58 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 3627 AIRPORT WAY 039 RPT  03/24/2017 16:08:31
03/23/2017 23:59 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 023 NRP  03/24/2017 00:27:57
03/22/2017 20:36 SUSPICIOUS 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 NRP  03/22/2017 21:21:1&
17000902 03/21/2017 14:34 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 015 RPT  03/21/2017 14:57:2€
03/16/2017 21:16 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 030 NRP  03/16/2017 21:34:1€
17000832 03/16/2017 00:04 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 034 RPT  03/16/2017 00:41:3C

Oaken Key #2754 3627 Airport Way
City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

Page 6 of

26 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
03/15/2017 23:32 S| - AOA 3627 AIRPORT WAY 027 NRP  03/15/2017 23:50:52
17000794 03/12/2017 18:42 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 024 RPT  03/12/2017 20:56:1¢
03/12/2017 01:15 DV - VERBAL - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  03/12/2017 01:35:37
17000778 03/11/2017 08:48 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 3627 AIRPORT WAY 010 RPT 03/11/2017 10:12:1€
03/11/2017 05:39 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 025 NRP  03/11/2017 05:53:07
03/10/2017 02:00 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  03/10/2017 02:26:2¢
17000722 03/06/2017 19:22 WANTED PERSON - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 09 RPT  03/06/2017 20:21:2€
03/06/2017 10:05 LOST PROPERTY - 3627 AIRPORT WAY DESKNRP  03/06/2017 10:22:1C
03/03/2017 23:29 DISTURBANCE - 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  03/04/2017 00:11:24
17000510 03/01/2017 16:21 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 RPT 03/02/2017 19:01:4€
17000637 02/28/2017 20:49 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3627 AIRPORT WAY 03 RPT  02/28/2017 23:37:2¢
02/27/2017 04:44 10-36 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 WAR  02/27/2017 04:52:3C
02/24/2017 02:32 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 016 NRP  02/24/2017 02:56:21
02/21/2017 01:04 TRESPASS SMALL 3627 AIRPORT WAY 035 NRP  02/21/2017 01:41:41

Total Number of Events Listed: 280

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

27 of 71



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Oaken Keg #3410 30 College Rd

02/20/2017 - 02/20/2018

Prime
Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
02/19/2018 21:51 TRESPASS 30 COLLEGE RD 034 NRP  02/19/2018 22:20:41
18000592 02/18/2018 19:32 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 034 RPT  02/18/2018 20:45:2¢
18000590 02/18/2018 11:59 SUSP 30 COLLEGE RD 07 RPT  02/18/2018 15:15:42
02/10/2018 22:03 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 30 COLLEGE RD O1 NRP  02/10/2018 22:17:21
02/10/2018 09:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP  02/10/2018 09:04:51
18000497 02/10/2018 08:42 ATTEMPTED SUICIDE 30 COLLEGE RD O7 RPT  02/10/2018 10:20:0¢
02/09/2018 09:57 ANIMAL COMP - 30 COLLEGE RD 015 NRP  02/09/2018 10:37:34
02/04/2018 18:54 S| - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD S9 NRP  02/04/2018 19:01:21
18000379 02/02/2018 08:56 SI - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 026 RPT  02/02/2018 09:38:4%
18000379 02/01/2018 09:51 FRAUD/FORGERY - 30 COLLEGE RD 026 RPT  02/01/2018 11:45:02
18000373 01/31/2018 20:00 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 08 RPT  01/31/2018 20:48:0C
01/30/2018 23:20 WELFARE CHECK - 30 COLLEGE RD 05 NRP  01/31/2018 00:52:4¢
01/30/2018 23:10 SUSP 30 COLLEGE RD O5 NRP  01/31/2018 00:52:3C
01/30/2018 18:21 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 30 COLLEGE RD O1 NRP  01/30/2018 18:44:5¢5
18000035 01/30/2018 08:55 S| - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 015 RPT  01/30/2018 09:35:1¢
01/26/2018 14:49 DUI - PARKED - 30 COLLEGE RD 034 NRP  01/26/2018 16:56:02
18000274 01/23/2018 15:32 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 036 RPT  01/23/2018 17:16:54
01/22/2018 15:20 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 30 COLLEGE RD 06 NRP  01/22/2018 16:22:08
18000035 01/22/2018 10:52 ADMINISTRATIVE 30 COLLEGE RD 015 RPT  01/22/2018 14:36:18
01/20/2018 20:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD O30 NRP  01/20/2018 21:07:0C
01/20/2018 17:48 S| - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 030 NRP  01/20/2018 17:57:1C
18000204 01/17/2018 22:08 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 04 RPT  01/17/2018 23:15:1¢
01/03/2018 18:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 029 NRP  01/03/2018 18:26:08
18000023 01/02/2018 15:49 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT  01/02/2018 19:04:02
18000005 01/01/2018 06:58 ASSAULT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 026 RPT  01/01/2018 07:46:1%
12/21/2017 19:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 011 NRP  12/21/2017 20:34:4%
12/21/2017 11:21 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP  12/21/2017 11:45:11
12/17/2017 21:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 05 NRP  12/18/2017 00:11:04
12/14/2017 12:07 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP  12/14/2017 12:20:32
12/13/2017 11:49 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP  12/13/2017 11:56:54
17004157 12/02/2017 21:55 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 029 RPT  12/02/2017 22:37:1%
11/30/2017 12:18 SUSP 30 COLLEGE RD 015 NRP  11/30/2017 12:21:3€
11/29/2017 21:48 NUISANCE - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD O11 SUBL 11/29/2017 22:15:52
11/22/2017 13:12 ADMINISTRATIVE 30 COLLEGE RD 04 NRP  11/22/2017 16:32:01
17004029 11/20/2017 09:22 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 06 RPT 11/20/2017 10:44:5¢
17003849 11/04/2017 15:52 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 025 RPT  11/04/2017 16:47:4C
10/25/2017 18:42 DISTURBANCE 30 COLLEGE RD 025 NRP  10/25/2017 19:28:02
17003669 10/21/2017 15:02 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT  10/21/2017 16:41:0€
17003657 10/20/2017 18:03 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 017 RPT  10/20/2017 21:37:51
10/18/2017 09:52 DUI - PARKED - 30 COLLEGE RD S1 NRP  10/18/2017 10:18:32
10/14/2017 20:10 TRESPASS/UNWANTE 30 COLLEGE RD 04 NRP  10/14/2017 20:42:5€

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 09:00:53 | User ID: 1225

Wecc-appl\osSitpdicanicd e iBackeEvdataitVahBRbBrtNumbers

28 of 71 Pane 1 of



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
10/11/2017 10:06 SI - COMMUNITY 30 COLLEGE RD 06 NRP  10/11/2017 10:15:51
10/09/2017 16:02 INCAPACITATED 30 COLLEGE RD 011 NRP  10/09/2017 16:30:28
10/09/2017 02:20 SUSP 30 COLLEGE RD 016 NRP  10/09/2017 02:49:27
10/08/2017 19:07 SEND PROTOCOL 30 COLLEGE RD 04 NRP  10/08/2017 19:20:58
10/03/2017 18:18 PAST TRAFFIC 30 COLLEGE RD S7 NRP  10/03/2017 18:39:47
09/30/2017 17:22 REDDI 30 COLLEGE RD 025 NRP  09/30/2017 17:32:0%
09/25/2017 13:43 MENTAL DISORDER - 30 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP  09/25/2017 14:09:24
17003288 09/22/2017 19:32 PAST DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 030 RPT 09/22/2017 22:31:58
09/20/2017 14:51 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 30 COLLEGE RD 025 NRP  09/20/2017 16:28:3C
17003257 09/19/2017 15:20 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 141 RPT 09/19/2017 16:18:32
17003051 09/07/2017 16:43 SUPP- 30 COLLEGE RD DESK RPT 09/07/2017 19:40:12
17002885 08/30/2017 11:27 ADMINISTRATIVE 30 COLLEGE RD 029 RPT 08/30/2017 14:06:44
17002885 08/23/2017 12:57 FRAUD/FORGERY - 30 COLLEGE RD 015 RPT 08/23/2017 13:28:47
08/18/2017 10:25 S| - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 06 NRP  08/18/2017 10:37:1C
08/16/2017 03:32 Sl - SECURITY CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD O6 NRP  08/16/2017 03:34:28
07/28/2017 22:28 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 30 COLLEGE RD 017 NRP  07/28/2017 22:55:55
07/28/2017 20:21 SUSPICIOUS 30 COLLEGE RD 011 NRP  07/28/2017 23:22:52
07/27/2017 22:26 THREAT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 030 NRP  07/27/2017 22:43:2€
07/22/2017 00:44 S| - FLAG DOWN 30 COLLEGE RD O3 NRP  07/22/2017 00:45:3¢
17002434 07/20/2017 19:11 FRAUD/FORGERY - 30 COLLEGE RD 017 RPT 07/20/2017 20:05:34
17002410 07/18/2017 11:12 WANTED PERSON - 30 COLLEGE RD 06 RPT 07/18/2017 12:06:32
07/13/2017 19:32 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 030 NRP  07/13/2017 19:51:0C
07/07/2017 13:27 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 30 COLLEGE RD 06 NRP  07/07/2017 13:49:34
07/07/2017 12:17 PAST HIT & RUN - 30 COLLEGE RD DESKNRP  07/07/2017 12:57:54
07/06/2017 03:41 10-36 30 COLLEGE RD 032 NRP  07/06/2017 03:49:3%
17001981 07/05/2017 09:04 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP  07/05/2017 09:36:14
17001931 07/05/2017 08:56 S| - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 022 NRP  07/05/2017 09:03:48
17002164 06/28/2017 21:56 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 011 RPT 06/28/2017 22:56:58
17002160 06/28/2017 16:24 FRAUD/FORGERY - 30 COLLEGE RD 04 RPT 06/28/2017 19:37:0C
06/22/2017 12:46 PAST TRAFFIC 30 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP  06/22/2017 13:46:5¢
06/09/2017 19:04 NUISANCE - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD O11 SUBL 06/09/2017 19:28:02
17001859 06/08/2017 10:53 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT 06/08/2017 11:08:11
06/08/2017 10:23 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 NRP  06/08/2017 10:43:57
17001907 06/08/2017 00:53 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 035 RPT 06/08/2017 01:48:34
17001902 06/07/2017 18:14 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 025 RPT 06/07/2017 20:23:3%
17001859 06/05/2017 10:21 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT 06/05/2017 10:33:2€
06/05/2017 10:06 DRUGS - USE - 30 COLLEGE RD O1 NRP  06/05/2017 10:19:38
06/04/2017 11:25 WELFARE CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 039 NRP  06/04/2017 11:51:3€
17001859 06/04/2017 09:39 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT 06/04/2017 09:48:04
17001859 06/03/2017 21:27 S| - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD O1 NRP  06/03/2017 21:40:5¢
17001859 06/03/2017 18:05 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT 06/03/2017 19:10:5C
06/03/2017 05:12 TRESPASS LETTER 30 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP  06/03/2017 05:14:5¢
06/01/2017 23:54 TRESPASS LETTER 30 COLLEGE RD DESK NRP  06/01/2017 23:59:02
17001736 05/27/2017 10:54 S| - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 RPT 05/27/2017 11:08:28
05/27/2017 08:07 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 01 NRP  05/27/2017 08:20:3¢
Oaken Keg #3410 30 College Rd Page 2 of

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

29 of 71



Prime

Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
05/25/2017 23:49 DISTURBANCE - 30 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP  05/26/2017 00:06:5€
05/23/2017 11:58 AOA - NON URGENT - 30 COLLEGE RD 010 NRP  05/23/2017 12:24:48
05/22/2017 07:38 SUSP 30 COLLEGE RD 01 NRP  05/22/2017 08:22:28
17001642 05/20/2017 12:39 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 039 RPT  05/20/2017 12:48:17
17001642 05/20/2017 00:07 SUSPICIOUS 30 COLLEGE RD 039 RPT  05/20/2017 12:27:22
17001639 05/19/2017 23:49 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 035 RPT 05/20/2017 01:51:5C
17001568 05/14/2017 06:02 TRESPASS SMALL 30 COLLEGE RD 026 RPT  05/14/2017 10:10:48
04/27/2017 21:28 TRESPASS SMALL 30 COLLEGE RD 09 NRP  04/27/2017 22:31:4C
04/26/2017 20:44 TRESPASS SMALL 30 COLLEGE RD 039 NRP  04/26/2017 21:55:02
04/16/2017 03:47 10-36 30 COLLEGE RD 016 NRP  04/16/2017 03:51:22
04/13/2017 23:49 TRESPASS SMALL 30 COLLEGE RD 017 NRP  04/14/2017 00:43:32
17000877 03/28/2017 08:33 Sl - FOLLOW-UP 30 COLLEGE RD 022 RPT  03/28/2017 10:14:1£
17000904 03/21/2017 17:46 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 30 COLLEGE RD 04 RPT  03/21/2017 18:39:51
17000891 03/20/2017 10:02 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 30 COLLEGE RD 022 RPT  03/20/2017 13:50:2€
03/17/2017 21:23 TRESPASS SMALL 30 COLLEGE RD O3 NRP  03/17/2017 21:43:32
17000829 03/15/2017 11:37 FRAUD/FORGERY - 30 COLLEGE RD 024 RPT  03/15/2017 17:30:1€
03/01/2017 14:27 MISCELLANEOUS - 30 COLLEGE RD 030 NRP  03/01/2017 15:47:3¢
17000601 02/25/2017 18:02 THEFT - DELTA 30 COLLEGE RD 09 RPT  02/25/2017 19:12:37
02/25/2017 12:40 WELFARE CHECK 30 COLLEGE RD 027 NRP  02/25/2017 12:56:5¢
02/21/2017 15:04 REDDI 30 COLLEGE RD O3 NRP  02/21/2017 15:43:24
Total Number of Events Listed: 106

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

30 of 71



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY

Seoul Gate 958 Cowles Street
02/20/2017 - 02/20/2018

Prime
Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time
12/01/2017 21:16 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 958 COWLES ST O1 NRP  12/01/2017 21:45:12
17003929 11/10/2017 17:34 PAST VEHICLE THEFT 958 COWLES ST 029 RPT 11/10/2017 18:29:0¢
17000879 03/19/2017 15:54 THEFT FROM 958 COWLES ST 024 RPT  03/19/2017 16:35:0%

Total Number of Events Listed: 3

Report Generated: 02/21/2018 09:04:42 | User ID: 1225
Wecc-applosSHadcadaitventdisiank et v aren I RBA8rtNumbers

stor /1 Pane 1 nof



[ Link | Eventip | Callrecy | 021202018 00:00:00 - [ 8 | AVL]| & | [ B ‘
Pﬂ"‘l Rapet
5 Enty | AniAl | Patients | Employee | Names | Vehicles |

[@ Prev | hex Q s [ Duplicaie |[@ Delste

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 32 of 71



Introduced by: Mayor Matherly
Introduced: March 19, 2018

RESOLUTION NO. 4829

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF SENATE BILL 215, AN ACT RELATING
TO MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEMS

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks operates a 911 Regional Dispatch Center, serving
as the primary public safety answering point (PSAP) for 911 call taking to citizens and visitors
in Interior Alaska; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks contains entities within its boundaries operating
multi-line telephone systems, which are capable of connecting numerous “extension”
telephones to a telephone switch with access to 911; and

WHEREAS, the ability for citizens and visitors to access 911 for emergency response
by directly dialing 911 without dialing additional codes or digits is critical in emergencies; and

WHEREAS, the correct location of the access device calling 911 is critical to provide
an accurate location for an emergency response; and

WHEREAS, the call back number of the access device calling 911 is critical to ability
to maintain contact and re-contact emergency callers; and

WHEREAS, the 115th Congress of the United States amended the Communications
Act of 1934 to include Kari's Law Act of 2017 or Configuration of Multi-line Telephone
Systems for Direct Dialing of 911; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fairbanks City Council supports
legislation which facilitates the implementation of Senate Bill 215 or House Bill 385, An Act
relating to multi-line telephone systems.

PASSED and APPROVED this 19th day of March 2018.

Jim Matherly, Mayor

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
APPROVED:

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul Ewers, City Attorney

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 33 0of 71



H.R.582

®ne Aundred Ffifteenth Congress
of the
Mnited States of America

AT THE SECOND SESSION

Begun and held at the City of Washington on Wednesday,
the third day of January, we thousand and eighteen

An Act

To amend the Communications Act of 1934 to require multi-line telephone syatems
to have a configuration that permita usera to directly initiate a call to 9-1-
1 without dialing any additional digit, code, prefix, or poat-fix, and for other

purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of
the United States of America in Congress assembled,

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.
This Act may be cited as the “Kari's Law Act of 20177,

SEC. 2. CONFIGURATION OF MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEMS FOR
DIRECT DIALING OF 8-1-1,

(a) IN GENERAL,—Title VII of the Communications Act of 1934
5_41'1 U.S.C. 601 et seq.) is amended by adding at the end the
ollowing:

“SEC. 721, CONFIGURATION OF MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEMS FOR
DIRECT DIALING OF 8-1-1.

“(a) SYSTEM MANUFACTURE, IMPORTATION, SALE, AND LEASE.—
A person engaged in the business of manufacturing, importing,
selling, or leasing multi-line telephone systems may not manufac-
ture or import for use in the I.Pnited States, or sell or lease or
offer to selimor lease in the United States, a multi-line telephone
system, unless such system is pre-configured such that, when prop-
erly installed in accordance with subsection {b), a user may directly
initiate a call to 9-1-1 from any station equipped with dialing
facilities, without dialing any additional digit, code, prefix, or post-
fix, including any trunk-access code such as the digit ‘9", regardless
of whether the user is required to dial such a digit, code, prefix,
or post-fix for other calls.

“(b)} SYSTEM INSTALLATION, MANAGEMENT, AND OPERATION.—
A person engaged in the business of installing, managing, or oper-
ating multi-line telephone systems may not install, manage, or
operate for use in the United States such a system, unless such
system is configured such that a user mady directly initiate a call
to 9-1-1 from any station equipped with dialing facilities, without
dialing any additional digit, code, prefix, or post-fix, including any
trunk-access code such as the digit ‘', regardless of whether the
user is required to dial such a digit, code, prefix, or post-fix for
other calls,

“(c) ON-SITE NOTIFICATION.—A person engaged in the business
of instelling, managing, or operating multi-line telephone systems
shall, in installing, managing, or operating such a system for use
in the United States, configure the system to provide a notification

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 34 of 71



H.R.582—2

to a central location at the facility where the system is installed
or to another person or organization regardless of location, if the
system is able to be configured to provide the notification without
an improvement to the hardware or software of the system.

“(d) EFFECT ON STATE Law.—Nothing in this section is intended
to alter the authority of State commissions or other State or local
agencies with jurisdiction over emergency communications, if the
exercigse of such authority is not inconsistent with this Act.

“e) ENFORCEMENT.—This gection shall be enforced under title
V, except that section 501 applies only to the extent that such
gection provides for the punishment of a fine.

“f) MuLTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM DEFINED.—In this section,
the term ‘multi-line telephone slvstern’ has the meaninﬁ fven such
term in section 6502 of the Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation
Act of 2012 (47 U.S.C. 1471).".

(b) EFFECTIVE DATE.—The amendment made by subsection (a)
shall apply with respect to a multi-line telephone system that
is manufactured, imrorted, offered for first sale or lease, first sald
or leased, or installed after the date that is 2 years after the
date of the enactment of this Act.

Speaker of the FHouse of Representatives.

Vice President of the United States and
President of the Senate.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 35 0of 71



O 00 -~ N U b W

10
11
12
13
14
15

30-LS1456\A

HOUSE BILL NO. 385
IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

THIRTIETH LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION

BY REPRESENTATIVE GRENN

Introduced: 2/21/18
Referred: Labor and Commerce, Finance

A BILL
FOR AN ACT ENTITLED

"An Act relating to multi-line telephone systems."
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

* Section 1. AS 29.35.134 is amended to read:
Sec. 29.35.134. Multi-line telephone systems. A municipality may by
ordinance elect to require an enhanced 911 system from a multi-line telephone system.

A municipality shall, unless provided otherwise by ordinance, require an

enhanced 911 system from a multi-line telephone system if, after January 1, 2019,
the system operator

1) upgrades an existing multi-line telephone system; or

(2) installs a new multi-line telephone system. [A MULTI-LINE
TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR MUST ARRANGE TO UPDATE THE
AUTOMATIC LOCATION IDENTIFICATION DATABASE WITH AN
APPROPRIATE MASTER STREET ADDRESS GUIDE, VALID ADDRESS, AND
CALLBACK NUMBER FOR EACH MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM
TELEPHONE, SO THAT THE LOCATION INFORMATION SPECIFIES THE

HB0385a -1- HB 385
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 36 of 71



L= B B - T P R N

L Y i I o R e i R N e S R N o R o I R T e T S S S PO —,
Lo = B = R - < s T = T ¥ 4 T - e N i == SN = T - BT R = S I TR O 'S B NG B ]

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

30-LS1456\A

EMERGENCY RESPONSE LOCATION OF THE CALLER. A MULTI-LINE
TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR IS CONSIDERED TO BE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THIS SECTION WHEN THE MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM
COMPLIES WITH ENHANCED 911 GENERALLY ACCEPTED INDUSTRY
STANDARDS AS DEFINED BY THE REGULATORY COMMISSION OF
ALASKA. FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION,

(1) "CALLBACK NUMBER" MEANS A NUMBER USED BY THE
PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT TO RE-CONTACT THE LOCATION
FROM WHICH A 911 CALL IS PLACED; THE NUMBER MAY OR MAY NOT
BE THE NUMBER OF THE STATION USED TO ORIGINATE THE 911 CALL;

(2) "EMERGENCY RESPONSE LOCATION" MEANS THE
LOCATION TO WHICH A 911 EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM MAY BE
DISPATCHED THAT IS SPECIFIC ENOUGH TO PROVIDE A REASONABLE
OPPORTUNITY FOR THE EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM TO QUICKLY
LOCATE A CALLER ANYWHERE WITHIN IT;

(3 "MASTER STREET ADDRESS GUIDE" MEANS A
DATABASE OF FORMATTED STREET NAMES, NUMERICAL ADDRESSES
OR ADDRESS RANGES, AND OTHER PARAMETERS DEFINING VALID
LOCATIONS AND EMERGENCY SERVICES ZONES, AND THEIR
ASSQCIATED EMERGENCY SERVICES NUMBERS, THAT ENABLES THE
PROPER ROUTING AND RESPONSE TO 911 CALLS;

(4) "MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM" MEANS A SYSTEM
MADE UP OF COMMON CONTROL UNITS, TELEPHONE SETS, AND
CONTROL HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE, INCLUDING NETWORK AND
PREMISES BASED SYSTEMS SUCH AS CENTREX AND PBX, HYBRID, AND
KEY TELEPHONE SYSTEMS, AS CLASSIFIED BY THE FEDERAL
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION UNDER PART 68 REQUIREMENTS, AND
INCLUDING SYSTEMS OWNED OR LEASED BY GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCIES OR NONPROFIT ENTITIES, AS WELL AS FOR PROFIT ENTITIES;

(5) "MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR" MEANS
AN ENTITY THAT OWNS, LEASES, OR RENTS FROM A THIRD PARTY, AND

~2- HB0385a
New Text Underlined {DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

37 of 71



D00 =1 hoh B L R e

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

30-LS1456\A

OPERATES A MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM THROUGH WHICH A
CALLER MAY PLACE A 911 CALL THROUGH A PUBLIC SWITCHED
NETWORK.]

* Sec. 2. AS 29.35.134 is amended by adding new subsections to read:

(b) A multi-line telephone system required under (a) of this section must allow
a caller to call 911 by dialing 911 directly without an additional code, digit, prefix,
postfix, or trunk-access code. The operator of a multi-line telephone system exempt
under (a) of this section that does not allow for direct 911 dialing shall post, in a
visible place not more than five feet from each telephone that is connected to the
multi-line telephone system, a notice that

(1) states that 911 services cannot be accessed by dialing 911 directly
on the telephone;
(2) indicates how a caller may access 911 services through the
telephone;
(3) is printed in contrasting colors in a bold font not smaller than 16
points;
(4) includes the following information, as applicable, about the
location of the telephone:
(A) the street address and business name;
(B) the office, unit, or building number;
(C) the room number or equivalent designation.

(c) A 911 call made using a multi-line telephone system required under (a) of
this section must provide to the public safety answering point receiving the call
verified automated number and location information for the call, including

(1) the street name, valid address, and business name, if applicable;

(2) the direct callback telephone number;

(3) the office, unit, or building number, as applicable;

(4) the room number or equivalent designation;

(5) if the multi-line telephone system operates for a building that has
more than one floor, the building floor;

(6) if the multi-line telephone system operates for more than one

HB0385a -3- HB 385

New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

38 of 71



A= - - I N = YV R N P R o B

[ T ™ B o N o e S N o A B O O N e e S S S
o= = R e Y T I — '~ - - T L N W T N S N

HB 385

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

30-LS1456\A

building,
(A) the building number or equivalent designation; and
(B) the building floor,

(d) The operator of a multi-line telephone system required under (a) of this
section must ensure that the system has a location database that stores the information
required under (¢) of this section and that the system is updated

(1) as soon as practicable after the system is installed; and

(2) within one business day after completion of any changes to the
physical characteristics of the facility where the system is used or changes to the
system, not including changes incurred during the installation of the system.

(e) Information in a location database created under (c) of this section

(1) is owned by the multi-line telephone system operator that supplied
the information;

(2) may not be required to be shared with another person, except as
required by law; and

(3) may not be used by a public safety answering point for any purpose
except to facilitate an emergency response to a 911 call.

(f) The Regulatory Commission of Alaska may adopt regulations to
implement and enforce this section.

(g) In this section,

(1) "multi-line telephone system” includes
(A) anetwork or premises-based telephone system
(i) installed at an end-use location that uses common
control units, common telephone, and common control hardware and
software to provide a connection to the public;
(ii) such as Centrex, Voice over Internet Protocol, and
PBX, Hybrid, and Key Telephone Systems, as classified by the Federal
Communications Commission under 47 C.F.R. 68 requirements; and
(B) systems owned or leased by government agencies and
nonprofit and for-profit entities;

(2) "multi-line telephone system operator” means an entity that owns,

-4- HB0385a
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

39 of 71



J0-LS1456\A

leases, or rents from a third party, and operates a multi-line telephone system by which

a caller may place a 911 call through a public switched network.,

HB0385a -5- HB 385
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED])

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 40 of 71



—

38

W00 s Oy b b W

10
11
12
13
14
15

WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT

30-L.S1455\D
Laffen
37218

SENATE BILL NO. 115
IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

THIRTIETH LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION
BY THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE

Introduced:
Referred:

A BILL
FOR AN ACT ENTITLED

"An Act relating to multi-line telephone systems."
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

* Section 1. AS 29.35.134 is amended to read:
Sec. 29.35.134. Multi-line telephone systems. A municipality may by
ordinance [ELECT TO] require [AN ENHANCED 911 SYSTEM FROM] a multi-line

telephone system operator to comply with this section if, after January 1, 2019, the
system operator
(1)} upgrades an existing multi-line telephone system; or

(2) installs a new multi-line_telephone system [. A MULTI-LINE
TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR MUST ARRANGE TO UPDATE THE

AUTOMATIC LOCATION IDENTIFICATION DATABASE WITH AN
APPROPRIATE MASTER STREET ADDRESS GUIDE, VALID ADDRESS, AND
CALLBACK NUMBER FOR EACH MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM
TELEPHONE, SO THAT THE LOCATION INFORMATION SPECIFIES THE
EMERGENCY RESPONSE LOCATION OF THE CALLER. A MULTI-LINE

Trafted by Legal Services -1-
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 41 of 71



b= I - - T B« T & R T ™ B oS R

W N RN R RN NN NR R e e e e e e el b e
—_— 0 D 0~ W R W N = O D 0w AR W N = D

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT 30-LS1455\D

TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR IS CONSIDERED TO BE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THIS SECTION WHEN THE MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM
COMPLIES WITH ENHANCED 911 GENERALLY ACCEPTED INDUSTRY
STANDARDS AS DEFINED BY THE REGULATORY COMMISSION OF
ALASKA. FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION,

(1) "CALLBACK NUMBER" MEANS A NUMBER USED BY THE
PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT TO RE-CONTACT THE LOCATION
FROM WHICH A 911 CALL IS PLACED; THE NUMBER MAY OR MAY NOT
BE THE NUMBER OF THE STATION USED TO ORIGINATE THE 911 CALL;

(2) "EMERGENCY RESPONSE LOCATION" MEANS THE
LOCATION TO WHICH A 911 EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM MAY BE
DISPATCHED THAT IS SPECIFIC ENOUGH TO PROVIDE A REASONABLE
OPPORTUNITY FOR THE EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM TO QUICKLY
LOCATE A CALLER ANYWHERE WITHIN IT;

(3) "MASTER STREET ADDRESS GUIDE" MEANS A
DATABASE OF FORMATTED STREET NAMES, NUMERICAL ADDRESSES
OR ADDRESS RANGES, AND OTHER PARAMETERS DEFINING VALID
LOCATIONS AND EMERGENCY SERVICES ZONES, AND THEIR
ASSOCIATED EMERGENCY SERVICES NUMBERS, THAT ENABLES THE
PROPER ROUTING AND RESPONSE TO 911 CALLS;

(4) "MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM" MEANS A SYSTEM
MADE UP OF COMMON CONTROL UNITS, TELEPHONE SETS, AND
CONTROL HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE, INCLUDING NETWORK AND
PREMISES BASED SYSTEMS SUCH AS CENTREX AND PBX, HYBRID, AND
KEY TELEPHONE SYSTEMS, AS CLASSIFIED BY THE FEDERAL
COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION UNDER PART 68 REQUIREMENTS, AND
INCLUDING SYSTEMS OWNED OR LEASED BY GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCIES OR NONPROFIT ENTITIES, AS WELL AS FOR PROFIT ENTITIES;

(5) "MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM OPERATOR" MEANS
AN ENTITY THAT OWNS, LEASES, OR RENTS FROM A THIRD PARTY, AND
OPERATES A MULTI-LINE TELEPHONE SYSTEM THROUGH WHICH A

2
New Text Underlined (DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

42 of 71



O 08 =~ O L AW N -

L S B O R R e S N S
—_— 0 O 0 N W R WN = 0 WO 00 - N R W RN = O

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT 30-LS1455'D

CALLER MAY PLACE A 911 CALL THROUGH A PUBLIC SWITCHED
NETWORK].

* Sec. 2. AS 29.35.134 is amended by adding new subsections to read:

(b) The operator of a multi-line telephone system that is required to comply
with this section shall ensure that the system

(1) allows a caller to call 911 by dialing 911 directly without an
additional code, digit, prefix, postfix, or trunk-access code;

(2) for every 911 call made using the system, provides to the public
safety answering point receiving the call verified automated number and location
information for the call, including

(A) the street name, valid address, and business name, if
applicable;
(B) the direct callback telephone number;
(C) the office, unit, or building number, as applicable;
(D) the room number or equivalent designation;
(E) if the multi-line telephone system operates for a building
that has more than one floor, the building floor;
(F) if the multi-line telephone system operates for more than
one building, the
(i) building number or equivalent designation; and
(ii) building floor; and
(3) has a location database that stores the information required under
(2) of this subsection and that the system is updated
(A) as soon as practicable after the system is installed; and
(B) within one business day after completion of any changes
made to the systemn or the physical characteristics of the facility where the
system is used; this subparagraph does not apply to changes incurred during
the installation of the system.
(c¢) Information in a location database created under (b)(3) of this section
(1) is owned by the multi-line telephone system operator that supplied

the information;

-3-
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

43 of 71



= - - T e e P R

e~ - SR > B o B o S S N % SR oS B -5 T 5 S e e e
—_— 0 O 0 - A B WL N = O D0 Y R W R = S

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT 30-LS1455\D

(2) may not be shared, except as required by law; and
(3) may not be used by a public safety answering point for any purpose
except to facilitate an emergency response to a 911 call.

(d} The operator of a multi-line telephone system that is not required by
ordinance to comply with this section and that does not allow for direct 911 dialing
shall post, in a visible place not more than five feet from each telephone that is
connected to the multi-line telephone system, a notice that

(1) states that 911 services cannot be accessed by dialing 911 directly
on the telephone;
(2) indicates how a caller may access 911 services through the
telephone;
(3) is printed in contrasting colors in a bold font not smaller than 16
points;
(4) includes the following information, as applicable, about the
location of the telephone:
(A) the street address and business name;
(B) the office, unit, or building number;
(C) the room number or equivalent designation.
(e) In this section,
(1) "multi-line telephone system" includes
(A) anetwork or premises-based telephone system
(i) installed at an end-use location that uses common
control units, common telephone, and common control hardware and
software to provide a connection to the public;
(i) such as Centrex, Voice over Internet Protocol, and
PBX, Hybrid, and Key Telephone Systems, as classified by the Federal
Communications Commission under 47 C.F.R, Part 68 requirements;
and
{B) systems owned or leased by government agencies and
nonprofit and for-profit entities;

(2) "multi-line telephone system operator" means an entity that owns,

-4-
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

44 of 71



WORK DRAFT WORK DRAFT 30-LS1455'D

leases, or rents from a third party, and operates a multi-line telephone system by which

a caller may place a 911 call through a public switched network.

-5-
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 45 of 71



Introduced by: Mayor Jim Matherly
Introduced: March 19, 2018

RESOLUTION NO. 4830

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO APPLY
FOR FUNDS FROM THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
HOMELAND SECURITY FOR THE FY2017 STAFFING FOR
ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE GRANT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Homeland Security provides funds
through the SAFER Grant Program to assist fire departments in increasing the number
of firefighters to meet industry minimum standards; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Fire Department has requested an increase in
staffing for a number of years; and

WHEREAS, the SAFER Grant Program will provide funding for new firefighters
for a period of three years covering 75% of the funding for the first two years and 35%
of the funding for the third year with no retention requirement after the third year; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Fire Department wishes to increase its overall
staffing by four firefighters; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks wishes to request $764,213.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or
his designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required to apply for funds

on behalf of the City for this grant.

PASSED and APPROVED this 19th Day of March 2018.

Jim Matherly, City Mayor

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
APPROVED:

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 46 of 71



CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

l. REQUEST:

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4830

Abbreviated Title:

FFY2017 SAFER GRANT PROGRAM

Department(s): FIRE DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:
1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget?

2) additional support or maintenance costs?

If yes, what is the estimate? see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget?

If yes, how many positions? 4

If yes, type of positions? F

Il. FINANCIAL DETAIL:

Yes No
Yes No
Yes X No

(F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

PROJECT EXPENSES: FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 Total
Personnel Wages & Benefits (4 Firefighters) $413,088 $413,088 $413,088| $1,239,264
Personnel Training Allowances (4 Firefighters) $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $6,000
Personnel Uniform Allowances (4 Firefighters) $2,400 $2,400 $2,400 $7,200
Personnel Equipment (4 Firefighters) $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000
Personnel Medical Evaluation (4 Firefighters) $3,600 $0 $0 $3,600
$0
TOTAL $441,088 $417,488 $417,488| $1,276,064
FUNDING SOURCE: FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 Total
United States Department of Homeland Security $309,816 $309,816 $144 581 $764,213
City of Fairbanks $131,272 $107,672 $272,907 $511,851
$0
TOTAL $441,088 $417,488 $417,488| $1,276,064

The City will have to maintain the current staffing levels at the Fire Department during the granting period. The City is
not obligated to maintain the positions beyond the three year grant period. The wages and costs were calculated at

the current rate with no increases for subsequent years.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

Initial cp

Date

3/13/2018

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018

47 of 71




Introduced by: Mayor Matherly
Introduced: March 19, 2018

RESOLUTION NO. 4831

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF CERTAIN LOTS IN
BLOCK 6, BJERREMARK HOMESTEAD SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, snow storage sites are of critical importance to the efficient removal
of snow from city streets by the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, by Ordinance No. 6071, as Amended, approved an
appropriation for the purchase of such property; and

WHEREAS, under the terms in Attachment A — Real Estate Purchase and Sale
Agreement, the City’s Property Manager has negotiated the purchase of Lots 1, 2, 11,
12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 of Block 6, Bjerremark Homestead Subdivision for use as a future
snow storage site.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fairbanks City Counclil
approves the purchase of Lots 1, 2, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 of Block 6, Bjerremark
Homestead Subdivision.

PASSED and APPROVED this 19th day of March 2018.

Jim Matherly, Mayor

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
APPROVED:

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul Ewers, City Attorney

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 48 of 71



‘“ATTACHMENT A” TO RESOLUTION NO. 4831

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE and SALE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made between the Parties:

Jorge Correa-Merlos, whose address is 6522 Homer Drive, Anchorage, Alaska, 99518,
hereinafter referred to as "SELLER"; and

The City of Fairbanks, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, whose address is
800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, 99701, hereinafter referred to as
"PURCHASER."

For and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, SELLER and
PURCHASER agree as follows:

1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL PROPERTY. SELLER agrees to sell to
PURCHASER, and PURCHASER agrees to buy from SELLER, that certain real
property more particularly described as:

Lots 1, 2, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16 of Block 6, Bjerremark
Homestead Subdivision, according to the plat filed June 30, 1950
as Instrument Number 119.146.

2. EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT. FIVE Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($5,000.00)
evidenced by: Check payable to Yukon Title Company of Fairbanks Alaska, upon
execution of this Agreement, received from PURCHASER, as part payment of the
purchase price, set forth below.

3. PURCHASE PRICE: $200,000.00.
Payable as Follows:
All cash to SELLER, at time of closing of this transaction.

4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT. The following conditions must be satisfied by the
Parties as designated below prior to and as a condition of closing of this transaction:

4.1 Due Diligence Investigations

PURCHASER has inspected the property and accepts same in its as-is, where-is
condition.

5. TITLE. At closing, SELLER shall convey marketable title to the property to the
PURCHASER subject only to benign covenants and easements of record, none of
which affect the marketability of the SELLER's title. PURCHASER shall obtain a policy
of title insurance insuring the title of the PURCHASER in the full amount of the

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 49 of 71



purchase price, and the premium for said policy shall be paid by PURCHASER. If
SELLER cannot furnish marketable title, this transaction may be terminated by
PURCHASER at its discretion.

6. EASEMENTS and ENCUMBRANCES. Rights reserved in Federal Patents,
Territorial or State Deeds, Zoning Regulations, benign easements, and subdivision
covenants, if any, shall not be deemed as encumbrances to be discharged. All
properties shall be delivered to the PURCHASER at time of closing free of all
mortgages, liens, judgments, and any taxes or assessments in default or arrears. The
amount of any such encumbrances which are now known liens on the property shall be
paid by SELLER.

7. PRORATING. Real property taxes shall be pro-rated as of the date of closing of
this transaction.

8. CLOSING COSTS. Closing costs, meaning those costs ordinarily incidental to
closing a real estate transaction such as escrow fees, and preparation and recordation
of documents required for closing, shall be paid for by PURCHASER.

9. CLOSING AND ESCROW. The closing of this transaction shall be held at the
earliest practical date consistent with the terms and conditions herein. However,
closing shall be held no later than 30 days from the date of acceptance shown below.
Such closing shall be escrowed with and processed by Yukon Title Company of
Fairbanks. A copy of this Agreement shall be deposited with the escrow agent by
SELLER, which Agreement shall serve as the escrow instructions.

10. CLOSING DOCUMENTS. SELLER shall execute and deliver to the escrow agent a
Statutory Warranty Deed conveying the referenced real property to the PURCHASER.

11. POSSESSION. PURCHASER shall have possession at close of sale. SELLER
shall have 30-days after closing to remove personal effects.

12. RISK OF LOSS. Risk of loss due to fire, flood, earthquake, acts of God, or other
calamity shall rest on the SELLER until closing, and the PURCHASER has the option
to rescind this Agreement if such event shall occur or close the transaction as provided
hereafter. If the PURCHASER chooses to proceed with the closing, the SELLER
agrees to reduce the total purchase price and the amounts due to the SELLER at
closing by the amount of the loss. Such loss shall be determined in accordance with
such reasonable methods of valuation as may be agreed upon between the parties at
the time of loss.

13. WAIVER OF ALASKA STATUTE 34.70. The parties agree that AS 34.70 does not
apply to this transaction and waive the applicability of AS 34.70.

14. AGENTS, COMMISSIONS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVICE. Neither party is

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, Page 2 of 3
“Attachment A” to Resolution No. 4831

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 50 of 71



represented by a real estate broker or other person to whom a commission is owed in
connection with this transaction. Each party has consulted with, or has had an
opportunity to consult with, the party’s own independent advisors, including experts,
attorneys and tax advisors. Other provisions of this Agreement notwithstanding, each
party shall bear its own costs under this section.

15. TIME. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and performance in accordance
with the terms and conditions hereunder shall be given the highest possible priority by
the parties hereto.

16. SURVIVAL AND SUCCESSION. The terms and conditions of this Agreement
shall survive the completion of the transaction that is the subject of this Agreement and
shall be binding upon the heirs, successors or assigns of the parties hereto.

PURCHASER: SELLER:

CITY OF FAIRBANKS JORGE CORREA-MERLOS
By: JIM MATHERLY

Title: Mayor

Date Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PAUL EWERS, City Attorney

Date

Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, Page 3 of 3
“Attachment A” to Resolution No. 4831

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 51 of 71



1S 143NN

NOTE: PROPERTY LINES AND AERIAL
PHOTOGRAPHY ARE COURTESY OF FNSB,

1S MYVYW3IHH3rg

24TH AVENUE

JORGE CORREA—-MERLOS

CITY OF FAIRBANKS

25TH AVENUE

RICHARDSON
HWY

PROPOSED PROPERTY

B ACQUISITION

AARA RS -

4 ""’\'\'\'u't ’u.. A Y
- Laad
A

% % LS ..




CITY OF FAIRBANKS

FISCAL NOTE
|. REQUEST:
Ordinance or Resolution No: 4831
Abbreviated Title: PURCHASE SNOW STORAGE SITE IN BJERREMARK HOMESTEAD SUBDIVISION

Department(s): GENERAL

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes X No

If yes, what is the estimate? see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions? (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

II. FINANCIAL DETAIL:

EXPENDITURES: Property| Contractual| Closing Costs Total
Property - Block 6, Bjerremark Subdivision, Various Lots $200,000 $0 $8,000 $208,000
TOTAL $200,000 $0 $8,000 $208,000
FUNDING SOURCE: Property| Contractual| Closing Costs Total
City of Fairbanks Capital Fund $200,000 $0 $8,000 $208,000
$0
TOTAL $200,000 $0 $8,000 $208,000

The operations and maintenance costs associated with these improvements will be performed by Public Works and
incorporated in the annual general fund budget. Closing costs include title insurance, escrow fees, recording fees, and
property taxes. City will be obligated to pay the property taxes since the property will not be eligible for exemption until
20109.

Reviewed by Finance Department: Initial mb Date 3/14/2018

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 53 of 71




Introduced By: Mayor Matherly
Date: March 19, 2018

ORDINANCE NO. 6073

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF GOLDEN HEART
PLAZA TO FESTIVAL FAIRBANKS

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is the owner of Lots 3 and 4, Block 4,
Fairbanks Townsite, also known as “Golden Heart Plaza,” and the improvements
thereon, as shown on attached “Exhibit A” Real Estate Lease, and

WHEREAS, Festival Fairbanks, a not-for-profit community agency, has for many
years promoted the public use, management, and maintenance of Golden Heart Plaza,
all of which benefits the City of Fairbanks, its residents, and visitors; and

WHEREAS, management of the Property by Festival Fairbanks is deemed
consistent with the provisions of Fairbanks General Code, Section 70, Article lIl,
“Golden Heart Plaza”; and

WHEREAS, lease of the Property to Festival Fairbanks will provide the basic
rights necessary for it to effectively and legally manage the Plaza; and

WHEREAS, Festival Fairbanks has requested a lease for the management
purposes stated above; and

WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Section 70-44 provides that the City may
lease without public offering whenever the lessee is a not-for-profit organization; and

WHEREAS, the lease of the Property described above is in the best interest of
the community.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:

SECTION 1. That a lease instrument substantially in the form
shown in attached “Exhibit A” is hereby authorized by Council for the
purposes herein stated, providing for an initial two-year lease term with a
one-year extension at the discretion of the City Mayor.

SECTION 2. That the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute
the lease on behalf of the City, and the City Clerk is authorized to attest
and affix the City Seal to said instrument, the execution of which shall take
place not less than 30 days after the effective date of this ordinance, as
prescribed by section 8.3 of the City Charter and Sec. 70-56 of the
Fairbanks General Code.

Ordinance No. 6073
Page 1 of 2

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 54 of 71



Introduced By: Mayor Matherly
Date: March 19, 2018

SECTION 3. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the
14th day of April 2018.

Jim Matherly, Mayor

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ADOPTED:

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DANYIELLE SNIDER, CMC, City Clerk PAUL EWERS, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 6073
Page 2 of 2

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 55 of 71



EXHIBIT “A” to ORDINANCE NO. 6073

REAL ESTATE LEASE

THIS LEASE, made and effective as of the _ day of 2018, by the
City of Fairbanks, a municipal corporation of the State of Alaska, with address of 800 Cushman
Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 99701, hereinafter called Lessor, and FESTIVAL FAIRBANKS, INC.,
with address of 514 Second Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 99701, hereinafter called Lessee.

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks, as trustee for the public, and pursuant to Ordinance 6073,
hereby authorizes lease of the property described below, under the conditions stated.

NOW THEREFORE, Lessor and Lessee, in consideration of the rent specified and of the
mutual covenants and agreements expressed herein, agree as follows:

1. Lease of Property. The Lessor leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases from Lessor, the real
property located at Fairbanks, Alaska, more particularly described as follows:

Lots 3 and 4, Block 4, Fairbanks Townsite, also known as “Golden Heart Plaza”,
and the improvements thereon, as shown on the attached “Lease Exhibit 1 of 1”.

2. Term. The term of this Lease shall be for three years, beginning 2018
and ending , 2021.

3. Option. This lease may be renewed for one additional year, at the sole discretion of the
Mayor.

4. Use. Lessee shall use the Property in compliance with Fairbanks General Code of
Ordinances Sections 70-96 through 70-99, “Golden Heart Plaza.”

5. Rent. As compensation for use of the Property during the life of this lease, Lessee shall pay
the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) per year, paid in advance. Payments will be made at Lessor's
Office of the City Clerk, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 99701.

6. Prohibited Uses. Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Property or any part thereof in
violation of any applicable law, ordinance, or regulation.

7. Maintenance and Expenses. Lessee shall perform routine cleaning associated with the leased
Property proper, keeping the Property in a clean, safe condition, free of litter and debris.
Lessee shall notify Lessor of hazards or safety concerns on or about the Property in a timely
manner. Lessor shall provide repairs or alterations as it deems necessary, at its expense.

8. Termination. In the event of Lessor’s sale or redevelopment of the property, Lessee's rights
hereunder shall terminate, and Lessee shall vacate within 60 days of written notice.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 56 of 71



Golden Heart Plaza Lease Page 2 of 4

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Exculpation and Indemnity.

a. Exculpation of Lessor: Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any damage to Lessee
or Lessee's property from any cause. Lessee shall bear all risk of loss as to all
personal property of the Lessee stored or remaining on or near the Property, including
without limitation, inventory, equipment, fixtures, and employees' personal effects.

b. Indemnity: Lessee shall defend and hold the Lessor harmless from all damages
arising out of any damage or injury to any person or property occurring in, about, or
on the Property.

c. Public Liability and Damage Insurance: Lessee at its sole cost shall at all times
maintain public liability and damage insurance with a single combined liability limit
of $1,000,000, insuring against all liability of Lessee and its authorized
representatives arising out of and in connection with Lessee's use or occupancy of the
Property.

All public liability insurance and property damage insurance will insure performance
by Lessee of the indemnity provisions provided herein. Lessor shall be named as an
additional insured.

Prevention of Waste and Nuisance. Lessee shall not use the Property in any manner that will
constitute waste, nuisance, or unreasonable annoyance to Lessor or the owners or occupants
of adjacent properties. Violation or breach under this section shall be determined at the sole
discretion of the City Mayor.

Assignment and Sublease. Lessee shall not assign or sublet its rights under this Lease
without written consent of Lessor, which consent shall be at Lessor’s sole discretion.

Liens. Lessee shall keep the Property free from any liens, including without limitation those
liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred by
Lessee.

Consultation with Attorney. Lessee acknowledges that it has the right to review this Lease
and all other documents relating to the Lease with its own attorney. Each party electing to
have this Lease reviewed by an attorney shall bear the costs and expenses so incurred.

Right of Entry. Lessor and its agents and authorized employees, shall have the right to enter
the rented Property to examine it and to make repairs, alterations, improvements, or
additions, as Lessor may deem necessary or desirable during Lessee's business hours. All
such entry shall be preceded by 72-hour advance notice to Lessee, except that immediate
entry will be allowed in event of emergency, as determined by the City Engineer.

Default. Failure to occupy and operate the Property for two consecutive weekends or failure
to perform any provision of this Lease shall constitute default by Lessee. Upon Lessee's

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 57 of 71



Golden Heart Plaza Lease Page 3 of 4

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

default, Lessor shall give Lessee 10 days notice to cure the default. No default notice shall
be deemed a forfeiture or a termination of this Lease unless Lessor so elects in the notice.

Notice. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that either party
desires or is required to give to the other party or any other person must be in writing and
either served personally or sent by prepaid, first class mail, addressed to the other party at the
address set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Lease. Either party may change its
address by notifying the other party of the change of address.

Attorney's Fees. If Lessor brings or maintains an action for enforcement of any of the
covenants, terms, or conditions of this Lease, Lessee shall pay all costs incurred by Lessor
for such action, including attorney's fees in the event Lessee is found to be at fault.

Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of each provision of this Lease.

Successors. This Lease shall be binding on the parties and their successors.

Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision will not render
the other provisions unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the date first written above.

FESTIVAL FAIRBANKS, INC. CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA
Julie Jones Jim Matherly
Executive Director Mayor

ATTEST:

D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 58 of 71



Golden Heart Plaza Lease Page 4 of 4

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of Alaska )
) SS
Fourth Judicial District )
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this day of 2018 before me, the

undersigned, a NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Jim
Matherly, the Mayor of the City of Fairbanks, and D. Danyielle Snider, the City Clerk of the
City of Fairbanks, the municipal corporation named in the foregoing instrument, and that they
acknowledged before me that they executed the same for and on behalf of said municipal
corporation. IN WITNESS, | have set my hand and seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC:
Commission Expires:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of Alaska )
) SS
Fourth Judicial District )
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this day of 2018 before me, the

undersigned, a NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared Julie
Jones of Festival Fairbanks, Inc., the Corporation named above, and she acknowledged to me
that she executed the same for and on behalf of said Corporation as the Executive Director, under
authority of said Corporation so granted by the Board of Directors, as the free and voluntary act
and deed of said Corporation. IN WITNESS WHEREOF | have set my hand and seal the day.

NOTARY PUBLIC:

Commission EXxpires:
Return to:
Patrick Smith
City of Fairbanks
800 Cushman Street Fairbanks, Alaska 99701

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 59 of 71



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES N |

DECEMBER 12, 2017 - 5:30 PM ,j_)
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS TN

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA

FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY COUNCIL I A&

The Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) convened at 5:30 p.m. on the above date to conduct a
Regular Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with
Vice Chair Walters presiding and with the following members in attendance:

Members Present: Lisa Slayton, Seat B Jo Ann Borges, Seat K
Juanita Webb, Seat D Amber Taylor, Seat N
Herbert Butler, Seat G Kelvin Lee, Seat O (telephonic)
Rosalind Kan, Seat H June Rogers, Councilmember
Marna Sanford, Seat I Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director
Douglas Toelle, Seat J
Members Absent: Heidi Shepard, Seat A (excused) Vacant, Seat F
Montean Jackson, Seat C (excused) Rita Davis, Seat L (unexcused)
Vacant, Seat E Mayor Jim Matherly, Chair (excused)
Also Present: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk Eric Jewkes, Police Chief

CALL TO ORDER & READING OF THE FDC MISSION STATEMENT

Vice Chair Walters welcomed everyone to the meeting. He explained that Mayor Matherly is
absent because he is attending the Hanukkah Festival of Lights celebration. He asked Ms.
Taylor to read aloud the FDC mission statement.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Vice Chair Walters led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Toelle, seconded by Ms. Webb, moved to APPROVE the Agenda.

Vice Chair Walters took a voice vote on the motion to
APPROVE the Agenda. The motion PASSED unanimously.

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS (Limited to 3 Minutes)

Robert Shields, 145 Marten Drive, Fairbanks — Mr. Shields stated that he was asked by Ms.
Borges to attend the meeting. He commended the work of the FDC and stated that he would like
to plant two seeds with the FDC: 1) consider working with the Fairbanks Climate Action
Coalition to put together a diversity parade at the Earth Day event; and 2) recommend that the
City of Fairbanks participate in identifying and making available renewable energy for tax-
challenged organizations and underserved community members. He stated that converting to
solar energy may cost $15,000 — $20,000 per household, but that everyone should be looking at
renewable energy in the current climate. He spoke to local support for the project.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 60 of 71



Frank Turney. 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks — Mr. Turney referenced the magazine article he
distributed prior to the meeting regarding privacy in public restrooms. He read aloud parts of the
article which spoke out against the bathroom mandate. Mr. Turney stated that the mandate
invades the privacy of individuals and is harmful in other ways. He expressed his opinion that
gender questioning is a mental health issue. Mr. Turney briefly spoke to discrimination in the
jury pool. He mentioned that the industrial hemp bill passed the Senate.

Sharon Hunter, 322 Cross Way. North Pole — Ms. Hunter stated that when she heard about the
FDC she went online to find out more. She stated that the most recent meeting minutes she
found were from June or July and that she was told by City staff that there were no more recent
minutes available.

Clerk Snider stated that there is a time lag in posting minutes due to the approval process but that
meeting minutes through September are available. She stated that she would make sure the
website is updated.

Mr. Butler asked Ms. Hunter what she thought of the site. Ms. Hunter suggested that the
Diversity Action Plan (DAP) be linked to the Fairbanks Diversity Council webpage, not just the
City’s homepage.

Hearing no more requests for comment, Vice Chair Walters declared Citizens’ Comments
closed.

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Vice Chair Walters talked about upcoming holiday events he saw posted on the Explore
Fairbanks website; he mentioned the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. holiday weekend and events in
January. Mr. Lee stated that No Limits will hold its 4th annual Night of Hope event on
December 23 from 6 — 8 p.m. at the JP Jones Center. Ms. Taylor shared that FNA will hold its
Christmas party on December 13 from 5 — 8 p.m. at Pioneer Park, and everyone is welcome.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of October 10, 2017

Mr. Toelle, seconded by Ms. Taylor, moved to APPROVE the Regular Meeting Minutes of
October 10, 2017.

Vice Chair Walters took a voice vote on the motion to
APPROVE the Minutes. The motion PASSED unanimously.

FAIRB POLICE DEPARTMENT & HUMAN RESOURCES REPORTS

Police Chief Eric Jewkes stated that the Fairbanks Police Department (FPD) has been busy. He
shared that two officers recently came out of field training and are doing well on their own. He
stated that three officers have just returned from the academy, two with military backgrounds
and one local young man. He stated that FPD is gearing up to fill a February police academy,
and they still have seven officers left to hire. Chief Jewkes stated that Officer Lewis retired at
the end of November, and there is a constant ebb and flow in staffing. He expressed hope that
2018 would be quieter than 2017. In response to a question from the Vice Chair regarding

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 12, 2017
RegulwMestingdMinates - March 19, 2018 Page2 aif/6



diversity, Chief Jewkes stated that one of the new officers is a female and another is Hispanic.
He added that the Dispatch Department is struggling also with seven vacancies.

Members asked the Chief questions about diversity training efforts, translation resources,
interactions and involvement with other local law enforcement agencies, and cultural immersion
in the community.

Ms. Foster-Smow shared that the City has been working through its 2018 budget, and it was
approved by the City Council on December 11. She stated that the City’s negotiating team
continues to work through labor negotiations with the various unions. She stated that HR has
been busy hiring temporary operators at Public Works for snow removal. In regard to the earlier
comments about the City’s website, she announced that the City is collecting bids for a new
website design and there are plans to move to a new website soon.

Vice Chair Walters noted that City Attorney Paul Ewers was present. He requested that a
discussion on the powers and duties of the FDC be added under Unfinished Business; no
members objected.

DIVERSITY TOPIC OF THE MONTH

Mr. Butler suggested inviting the Borough Mayor to an FDC meeting since the body has a
direct impact on both the City and the Borough. Vice Chair Walters stated that for January and
February diversity topics, he has noted to invite students from the African-American clubs in the
FNSB School District and Mayor Karl Kassel. Ms. Rogers stated that she would like to invite
elders “of a certain age and experience” to participate in a future meeting; she commented that
elders are an important part of the community. Ms. Borges stated that she would like to extend
an invitation to representatives of the NAACP Bennie Colbert and Ruby Sutton.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a) Powers and Duties of the FDC — City Attorney Paul Ewers

City Attorney Ewers stated that the limitations of the FDC’s authority may depend on the issue;
he referenced his recent, written memo to the City Clerk which was forwarded to the
membership. He stated that, in general, the FDC may continue with its public outreach and
support for certain projects without governing body approval. He stated that if the FDC would
like to take a position on an issue the City Council or Borough Assembly has the authority to act
upon, the FDC would have to make a recommendation to the governing body. In response to a
question from Vice Chair Walters, Mr. Ewers explained the difference between the FDC’s
authority to get involved with projects like the “potty project” versus it taking an official position
on a bill in the state legislature.

Members provided comments and asked questions of Mr. Ewers related to the FDC’s powers and
authority. Attorney Ewers clarified that the FDC is an advisory body to the City Council and the
Borough Assembly, and he again referenced his memo which quoted FGC Sec. 2-234. He stated
that the FDC has the authority to write position papers to advocate for certain things in the
community. Members indicated they would like to see more involvement and communication
between the FDC and the FNSB.

Mr. Ewers closed by stating that he welcomes future questions from the FDC as issues arise.

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 12, 2017
RegudavMestingMiautes - March 19, 2018 Page3 076



NEW BUSINESS
a) City Ordinance No. 6064 — Changes to Chairperson Position

Vice Chair Walters read aloud the changes in FGC 2-233(a). He asked members to begin
considering whether they are interested in serving as a Chair, and he suggested that the item be
addressed at the January meeting. He spoke about what is expected of the position.

FDC COMMITTEE REPORTS

Education & Outreach/Media & Communications Committee — Vice Chair Walters stated that
there were no November or December meetings, and there is nothing to report.

Accessibility Committee — Mr. Toelle stated that he was the only member present at the
meeting, and he has nothing to report.

Policies & Procedures Committee — Ms. Sanford stated that she is proposing to cancel the
January 4 meeting and instead do a “trifecta” of meetings starting later in January focused on
policy writing. She stated that she is looking at noon meetings on January 18, 25 and February
2,2018. She asked committee members to respond to the email she sent.

At Ms. Borges’ request, Vice Chair Walters invited Ms. Tanya Coty to come forward to speak
since she did not speak under Citizens’ Comments. No members objected.

Tanya Coty, 616 Steele Creek Road, Fairbanks — Ms. Coty introduced herself as the Equal
Opportunity and Educational Coordinator for the FNSB School District. She stated that she

would be regularly attending FDC meetings instead of Wendy Tisland, the former Executive
Director for the District. She stated that she looks forward to working with the FDC but that she
would be unable to attend the January 9 meeting. She stated that she has been working with Mr.
Walters on some issues. Ms. Coty shared that the District just finished its Affirmative Action
Plan, and she will be presenting statistically-significant findings in the Plan to the School Board
in January. She spoke about recent changes to the District’s Diversity Committee, and she
invited folks to apply to serve by visiting the School District website. She shared that the next
Committee meeting will be held on January 18, 2018.

FDC MEMBERS COMMENTS
Mr. Lee apologized for not being physically present. He stated he has no other comments.

Ms. Kan commented on the short and sweet meeting. She asked how the FDC understands the
definition of the term “transgender.”

Vice Chair Walters stated that he would speak with Hayden Nevill to see if he could provide
the FDC with a definition of the term.

Ms. Rogers stated that it was a good meeting with a good turnout. She stated she is eager to
advance with a more involved communication and relationship with the FNSB.

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 12, 2017
RegulaMeetingMinutes - March 19, 2018 Paged of 6



Ms. Sanford thanked Ms. Slayton for providing everyone with the packet of information, and
she encouraged everyone to read it. She stated she is amazed at how much local folks
misunderstand Alaska Native culture and community. She stated that the project “Native Truth”
expels some of the myths about Native Alaskans. She expressed disappointment in the City
Attorney’s opinion; she stated that she fundamentally disagrees with his interpretation of the City
ordinance. She stated she will push the limits on the issue of FDC authority and power for the
remainder of her term.

Ms. Webb thanked everyone who spoke and presented. She also expressed appreciation for the
packet Ms. Slayton provided. She asked whether anyone had looked into the possibility of
appointing a student representative to the FDC.

Mr. Toelle spoke to the Diversity and Inclusion Committee which he serves on. He stated that
the group recently met for their first meeting and suggested that the FDC interface with that
group. He stated that he also serves on the National MS Society group.

Ms. Taylor stated that she is involved in many events, but no other members besides Ms. Rogers
have ever really taken interest. She indicated she would like to see the FDC get more involved
with events and activities.

Ms. Rogers expressed agreement with Ms. Taylor. She stated that it is difficult to get people
involved, and she would like members to rethink participation at community events.

Mr. Butler agreed that the FDC should do its best to bring in the FNSB as an equal participant
like the City of Fairbanks because the body represents the entire community. He spoke to how
Native Americans acquired medical care through a treaty in the 1800s and to how it was
rudimentary and subpar for many years. He stated that, fortunately, Alaska has become
intelligent and organized and is now an example for the rest of the nation. He spoke to his own
experiences in using medical services in Alaska. He encouraged everyone to visit his Facebook
page and read his writing over the last few weeks. Mr. Butler stated that the nation, state, and
community are under terrific political strife currently and commented that the majority of
everyone present is likely directly impacted by what is going on politically. He stated that he is
becoming increasingly optimistic about the FDC, and it is up to the FDC to firm up its
infrastructure and progress.

Ms. Slayton stated that it would be good to learn more about the Southern Poverty Law Center
and the services they provide. She stated they have resources for councils and committees like
the FDC. She suggested that FDC members sign up for their productions and mailings.

Vice Chair Walters suggested that Ms. Slayton send a link to the information to Clerk Snider to
forward to the membership so they could learn more about it.

Ms. Borges apologized for missing several meetings. She expressed sadness that the FDC lost
another member. She stated that FDC members should attend each other’s functions as the
group is there to represent. She questioned whether the FDC has any promotional items on hand.
She asked whether there had been any funds budgeted specifically for the FDC.

Ms. Foster-Snow stated that they could get more bookmarks. She stated that there is not a line
item in the budget specifically for the FDC, but that the Mayor has asked members to make

requests to him as necessary for needed items.

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 12, 2017
Rugutar MeetingMinutes - March 19, 2018 Page5 of 6



Ms. Borges wished everyone a Happy Holiday season.

Ms. Foster-Snow stated that she would be happy to send a letter to local high schools to see if
there is any interest in serving on the FDC. She stated that she has served at the Night of Hope
with Mr. Lee’s group in the past, and she encouraged people to attend the event. She stated that
she feels the FDC should revisit the “potty project” and clarify its support of the project. She
stated that there has been some misrepresentation of the project—even at the City Council level.

Ms. Rogers stated that Ms. Foster-Snow made a heartfelt and passionate statement about the
importance of having private restroom space available to everyone. She agreed that some
clarification should be provided. Ms. Foster-Snow stated that members of the public have
spoken to the issue at City Council meetings and have misinterpreted what the project is about.

Vice Chair Walters stated that the “potty project” is about asking local businesses to make
single toilet restrooms unisex. He stated that FDC’s title is on the letter of support for the
project. He mentioned the PFLAG survey that he asked Clerk Snider to send out to the
membership; he stated that there were about 85 responses from community members. Vice
Chair Walters stated that there was a recent town hall-type meeting at the Unitarian Church on
LGBTQ issues, and over 60 people attended. He stated that there has been an outpouring of
support and interest lately for PFLAG and that there will be a follow-up meeting at the Noel
Wien Library on December 16 from 2 — 3:30 p.m. He mentioned some recent emails from a lady
in California to the FDC regarding the Supreme Court case about the wedding cake; he
questioned whether it is something the FDC would like to address. He spoke to materials
provided by the City on behalf of the FDC for various events. Vice Chair Walters expressed his
regret that Mr. Cole resigned from the FDC, and he indicated that he would like the Mayor and
the FDC to send him a nice note to thank him for his service. He stated he would try to bring a
thank you note to the next meeting for everyone to sign.

Ms. Slayton questioned how many people present had done the ancestry.com DNA test. She
stated that she did one and was surprised by the results. She encouraged everyone to take the test
and commented that it makes one sit back and think.

MEETING DATES

The next Regular Meeting of the FDC is scheduled for Tuesday, January 9, 2018
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Toelle, se ed by Ms. Sanford, moved to ADJOURN the meeting.

aring no objection, Vice Chair Walters declared the meeting
JOURNED at 7:27 p.m.

: /
Ma?l Wﬂatherly, Chair

Transcribed by: DS

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT December 12, 2017
ReigubanMoeting Mitastes - March 19, 2018 Pagé6 of 6



FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY COUNCIL 7 ,
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES ‘ 'A:“%g@
FEBRUARY 13,2018 -5:30 P.M. )(u

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS T\

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA

The Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) convened at 5:30 p.m. on the above date to conduct a Regular
Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Vice Chair Walters
(Seat M) presiding and with the following members in attendance:

Members Present: Lisa Slayton, Seat B Rita Davis, Seat L
Kathryn Ottersten, Seat E Kelvin Lee, Seat O
Herbert Butler, Seat G June Rogers, Councilmember (telephonic)
Rosalind Kan, Seat H Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director
Members Absent: Vacant, Seat A Douglas Toelle, Seat J (excused)
Montean Jackson, Seat C (excused) Vacant, Seat K
Juanita Webb, Seat D (excused) Amber Taylor, Seat N (excused)
Svetlana Nuss, Seat F Mayor Jim Matherly, Chair (excused)
Marna Sanford, Seat I (excused)
Also Present: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk Dan Welborn, Deputy Police Chief

CALL TO ORDER & READING OF THE FDC MISSION STATEMENT

Vice Chair Walters called the meeting to order; he stated that Mayor Matherly is speaking at another
event. He stated that there is no quorum present, so no action can be taken. He asked Mr. Butler to read
aloud the FDC mission statement. Mr. Butler read the statement aloud.

a) Welcome to New Members Kathryn Ottersten and Svetlana Nuss

Vice Chair Walters welcomed the new member present, Ms. Kathryn Ottersten. Ms. Ottersten stated
she is a native of Brooklyn, New York with a great deal of experience in social justice. She spoke to her
background and experiences and stated that she deliberately spent three years as a homeless person in
New York so that she could remain an activist; she stated she also worked with the homeless and those
with HIV. She stated she helped to change the needle exchange law in New York. Ms. Ottersten stated
that she was born intersexed, and doctors made decisions without her parents’ involvement when she was
born. She indicated she has had to deal with some long-term consequences of that.

Vice Chair Walters and members took turns introducing themselves to Ms. Ottersten.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Vice Chair Walters led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Ms. Foster-Snow requested that New Business item (a) be postponed to the next meeting.

No members objected to Ms. Foster-Snow’s request.

City Council Agenda Packet - March 19, 2018 66 of 71



CITIZENS COMMENTS (limited to 3 minutes)

Tonya Coty, Director of Employment & Educational ortunity at Fairbanks North Star Boro
School District (FNSBSD) — Ms. Coty stated she is pleased to see Black History Month on the FDC
agenda. She stated there were many entries by students in the Black History Month contest in the district.
She stated that the FNSBSD Diversity Council held a meeting recently. She shared that the FNSBSD
Board will consider a resolution to recognize International Women’s Day and Month on February 20.

Ms. Foster-Snow asked Ms. Coty if she could help the City get the word out to gain interest from local
youth in serving on the FDC. Ms. Coty stated that she is willing to help. Ms. Rogers mentioned the
students from West Valley who attended an FDC meeting. Ms. Foster-Snow suggested that she and Mr.
Walters attend one of the student meetings at West Valley.

Vice Chair Walters asked what other months like Women’s Month are recognized by the FNSBSD. Ms.
Coty stated that there are about a dozen of them, and she can get a list for the FDC.

Helen Marie Matesi — Ms. Matesi stated that there was a question about the FDC’s autonomy at the last
meeting. She stated she is proud that the Fairbanks community has a diversity council, and she
understands that the FDC is still in the formative stages. She expressed her personal opinion that the FDC
should act in harmony with but somewhat independent of the City Council. She stated that people come
to the FDC to seek help and support; she stated the City Council needs advice from the FDC. She stated
that the decision on whether a request is supported needs to belong to the FDC, and the body needs the
freedom to decide those things.

Hearing no more requests for comment, Vice Chair Walters declared Citizens’ Comments closed.
CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Ms. Kan stated the Chinese New Year event would be held on February 17 at the UAF Wood Center Ball
Room with dinner at 5:30 p.m. She stated tickets are $16 to purchase in advance.

Mr. Butler stated that the Festival of Native Arts is coming up soon. He stated that the Fairbanks Native
Association (FNA), Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), and Doyon annual meetings are all approaching
soon as well. He stated that information about the FNA and TCC meetings can be found on Facebook.

Ms. Slayton stated that a Fabulous Feminist Fundraiser is coming up in April, and she will bring more
information to the next meeting.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2017
The FDC was unable to approve the meeting minutes due to lack of a quorum.

FAIRBANKS POLICE DEPARTMENT & HUMAN RESOURCES REPORTS

Deputy Police Chief Dan Welborn reported that the Fairbanks Police Department (FPD) has 45 sworn
positions, six of which are currently vacant. He stated that there are some new officers still in training,
and one new hire will go to academy later in the month. He stated that a new lateral hire from Florida

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT February 13, 2018
RegulayMssting Mimatesacket - March 19, 2018 cPage2 of 6



will start March 1. He stated that there are three expected retirements within the department in 2018. He
expressed hope that the FPD is at full staffing levels by 2020. Deputy Welborn stated that the FPD offers
Comprehensive Officer Preparation Seminars (COPS) as often as possible for people looking into law
enforcement as a career. He stated the seminars will be held on February 28, March 28, and April 28, and
there are not many people signed up yet; he spoke to other recruitment efforts by FPD. He explained that
DDACTS is data-driven approaches to crime and traffic safety, and he would like to see the program
implemented at FPD; he stated the department is going to start focusing on trouble areas in Fairbanks.
Deputy Welborn stated that he and Chief Jewkes continue to meet with Rodney Gaskins and Brenda
McFarlane at the Fairbanks Rescue Mission to address homelessness in Fairbanks. He shared that he and
Chief Jewkes hosted a recent webinar with FPD’s chaplains on “Protecting Places of Worship.” He stated
that the partnership between chaplains, law enforcement, and churches is timely because of all the
incidents that have taken place in churches nationwide.

Ms. Slayton questioned whether safety in places of worship has been an issue in Fairbanks. Deputy
Welborn replied it has not been an issue, but with all the mass shootings it is a worthwhile effort.

Deputy Welborn spoke to the recent shooting of a young lady in Fairbanks. He stated it was a tragic
event, but a success story came out of it. He explained that an employee of a local dance studio received
a Nixle alert and was able to assist the police in apprehending the suspect. He stated that at one point, the
gunman tried to enter Randy Smith Middle School, but the building was already on lockdown.

Ms. Slayton asked what proactive measures are being taken to address domestic violence issues. Deputy
Welborn replied that there used to be a domestic violence program coordinator at FPD, but there no
longer is. He stated that domestic violence is prevalent in Fairbanks, and those are the most dangerous
calls for the FPD. He stated that with low staffing levels, the FPD is currently in reactive mode in regard
to domestic violence issues. Ms. Slayton indicated that she would like to see more attention given to
being proactive with domestic violence issues in Fairbanks. She indicated that outreach to churches is not
as much of a priority in Fairbanks as the issue of domestic violence. She stated that she would like to see
the prevalent problems addressed, and she would like to bring back a domestic violence coordinator.

Mr. Butler asked how the Fairbanks community is doing with substance abuse issues. Deputy Welborn
stated that he does not have statistics available at the moment. He spoke to the implementation of Senate
Bill 91 and to some of the problems law enforcement has experienced with it. Mr. Butler asked about
the working relationship between the FPD, the Alaska State Troopers (AST), and the military police
(MPs). Deputy Welborn stated that the FPD has a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the MPs;
he stated that generally the FPD handles civilian issues on Fort Wainwright, and the MPs handle issues
when military personnel is involved. Mr. Butler and Deputy Welborn spoke to MP and FPD turnover.
Deputy Welborn stated the FPD has a good relationship with the military bases.

Ms. Kan spoke to domestic violence in Fairbanks and agreed that education is good place to start. She
stated that the FDC and the City should find a way to recognize International Women’s Day.

Vice Chair Walters spoke to helping the police force be as representative of the community as possible.
He asked Deputy Welborn to address whether the department is seeing diversity in new recruits. Deputy
Welborn stated that when he started at FPD, hiring groups were made up of about 200 people; he stated
that now there are about 10. He remarked that the department would love it if more people would apply,
and he spoke to police recruitment issues statewide. He stated that he and the Chief come to work in
uniform because they need go out on calls; he stated that is not standard for command staff in most
departments.

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT February 13, 2018
Reguldtitvaeting Mimsdesacket - March 19, 2018 6PagE13 of 6



Ms. Rogers expressed concern about the image that the title of the event, “Run from the Cops” portrays.
Deputy Welborn acknowledged Ms. Rogers’ concern and explained what the event is all about. He stated
that he could address that with Chief Jewkes.

HR Director Foster-Snow stated that things have been busy in HR. She stated the City filled an
Engineer position last week and recently hired 2.5 new Dispatchers and 3 new Firefighters. She stated
that the City is currently filling the Risk Management/Purchasing position and is recruiting for an
Accounting Specialist and an Operator at Public Works. She stated that the City has to open the
recruitment process internally first, then it may go out to the public. She stated that the City Engineer
position and a Lead Mechanic position at Public Works will open in about a week.

DIVERSITY TOPIC OF THE MONTH
a) Black History Month — Representative(s) from Fairbanks NAACP

Benny Colbert, NAACP President, Fairbanks Chapter — Mr. Colbert thanked the FDC for the invitation to
speak. He told a little about his background and about the NAACP. He stated that the organization is not
a “Black” organization and explained that it is inclusive of all people. He invited folks to join the
NAACEP; he shared that the Executive Board meets every third Saturday, 10:00 a.m. and the general
membership meets the same day at 11:30 a.m. downstairs from Fairbanks Neighborhood Housing. He
spoke to the need for transparency and to the need to get word out about the organization into the
community. He stated that in October, Domestic Violence Awareness Month, the NAACP brought up Dr.
McCoy, an actress/singer who did 7-10 different caricatures of different types of domestic violence. He
stated that they held events at the Morris Thompson Cultural and Visitor’s Center and at UAF. Mr.
Colbert spoke to the importance of education in helping solve the problem of domestic violence. He
stated that he is tired of youth being taught by social media and stated that it is shocking that young
people are fighting for causes that they know little to nothing about. He stated that many do it to feel like
they belong or because someone told them to. He expressed hope that people begin knowing and
understanding more about other cultures and differences. He stated that people all different, but they are
all human. Mr. Colbert clarified that the February 17 NAACP meeting would be held at a different
location, the Mt. McKinley Bank conference room. He spoke to the Black History Month contest at the
FNSBSD and to the great participation by students throughout the district.

Ms. Kan extended to the NAACP an invitation to the International Friendship Day event held in October;
she stated it would be nice to have the organization represented there. Mr. Colbert stated that he would be
open to the event. He spoke about other events throughout the year that the NAACP puts on, including
Juneteenth and the Freedom Fundraiser.

Mr. Butler invited Mr. Colbert to attend the Festival of Native Arts on March 1, 2, and 3. Mr. Colbert
suggested that different groups coordinate an event calendar containing all the various events throughout
the community. He spoke briefly to the issues of racism and inequality in the community and stated that
it is time to heal and fix the problems. He stated that he would like to see high school teachers broaden
what they teach because so much more history exists than what students are taught.

NEW BUSINESS

a) Appointment of Second Vice Chair (This item is to be discussed at the March 13 FDC meeting)

b) Review of Diversity Action Plan

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT February 13, 2018
RegulantMeeting Minateacket - March 19, 2018 eRage14 of 6



Vice Chair Walters stated that Ms. Jackson had requested a review of the DAP to make sure the FDC is
following it. He explained a little about the Plan and its history. He asked the group to review the six
main goals of the Plan by reading them aloud.

Mr. Butler stated that he spoke with the Mayor eatlier in the week. He indicated that the original
purpose of FDC was to focus on discrimination in employment, and that changed with the DAP. He
commented that there are many things in the Plan that require action, and he has not seen any sign-off on
the items the FDC has completed. He stated he feels like the Mayor and more members need to be
present in order to begin the DAP review process, and suggested that the item be tabled until the next
meeting. He stated that the DAP should be the primary topic of the meeting. He indicated that he has a
lot of comments and notes on the DAP.

Mr. Lee stated that most members who were around when the Plan was drafted are no longer on the FDC.
He stated that it is easy to come along after the fact and pick the DAP apart. He expressed his belief that
the FDC needs to accomplish things in the DAP before revising it. He commented that it would be good
to review the goals of the Plan.

Mr. Butler stated that members should study the document then step into the review process. Ms.
Ottersten commented that she reviewed the Plan and found it enormously confusing.

Ms. Davis agreed with Mr. Lee. She stated that she is an original member of the FDC and that when
former Mayor Eberhart formed the FDC, he wanted to help the local government reflect the Fairbanks
community. She stated that there was some chaos with the FDC at first but that it has come a long way.
She stated that the group needs to start doing instead of picking the DAP apart.

Members took turns reading aloud the six goals in the DAP.

c) Committee Assignments for New Members

Ms. Ottersten indicated that she would be well-suited for the Education/Outreach Committee.
FDC COMMITTEE REPORTS

Vice Chair Walters stated that he and Mayor Matherly were the only ones who attended the last
Education/Outreach Committee meeting.

Mr. Butler stated that the Policies and Procedures Committee had planned to meet for three weeks in a
row, but the question arose as to what the FDC’s goals were. He stated that the group wanted to wait until
the DAP was addressed by the FDC before digging back in to policies and procedures. He stated that the
group hopes to come back to the FDC with some suggestions.

FDC MEMBERS COMMENTS
Mr. Lee welcomed the new members and stated that he has been travelling a lot. He commented that he

enjoys being a part of FDC, and he wants the group to stay on target. He stated that he likes that the FDC
was started to make more fair situations for people.

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT February 13, 2018
RegulanMusting Minutepacket - March 19, 2018 70Page 5 of 6



Ms. Slayton thanked new members joining the FDC. She distributed a handout on terms relating to the
gender spectrum and another on domestic violence in Alaska. She stated that she brought other Southern
Poverty Law Center magazines and newspapers that are free for anyone to take.

Mr. Butler stated that he read the thick handout on Alaska Natives that Ms. Slayton brought to the last
meeting. He stated it was a compilation of essays and such written by the scholarly. He stated that the
piece indicated that the primary focus of Alaska Natives is to preserve their culture. He stated he felt the
handout wrongly stated the makeup of Alaska Native traditions. He spoke to Alaska Native cultural
traditions that continue and stated that the culture is teaching its people how to succeed in the cash
economy. He stated that point was missed in the handout. He stated that Alaska Natives are intent on
training each other, and there are a lot of highly-trained and highly-skilled Alaska Natives.

Ms. Kan stated that the FDC touched on important topics at the meeting. She stated that she hopes to see
International Women’s Day and the DAP on the next meeting agenda.

Ms. Foster-Snow welcomed Ms. Ottersten to the FDC.

Ms. Davis stated she is happy to be back.

Ms. Ottersten stated she is looking forward to learning. She stated that nowhere in the DAP is there
anything about showing the rest of the world how diverse Fairbanks is. She stated that Fairbanks is a
great place to live and that people who live in Fairbanks should be proud of their community; she stated
that Fairbanks should let the rest of the country know about it.

Vice Chair Walters thanked Mr. Colbert for attending the meeting. He stated that he attended the Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. celebration, and it was wonderful to see the Alaska Native dancers at the event.

Ms. Rogers spoke to Fairbanks being a welcoming place. (Much of her comments were inaudible).
MEETING DATES

a) Consideration of Diversity Council Regular Meeting Date (This item was not discussed)

b) Next Meeting Date, March 13, 2018

[,

Ma)?{r Jind Watherly, Chair

Transcribed by: DS

Fairbanks Diversity Council NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT February 13, 2018
RegularidMesting Mismigs acket - March 19, 2018 7Page16 of 6



	AGENDA - March 19, 2018
	MINUTES - January 29, 2018
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Renewals

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4829
	Resolution No. 4830
	Resolution No. 4831
	Ordinance No. 6073

	WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL
	Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes - 12/12/17
	Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes - 02/13/18




